

BY: THOMAS J. HUGHES WITH CRAIG CLARK

## Israel's Place in God's Eternal Plan

By Thomas J Hughes With Craig Clark

Israel's Place in God's Eternal Plan

Copyright © 2025 by Thomas J. Hughes Ministries Inc.

Published by Thomas J. Hughes Ministries Inc.

All rights reserved. No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, or transmitted in any form by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopy, recording, or otherwise, without the prior permission of the publisher, except as provided by USA copyright law.

Unless otherwise noted, scripture quotations are taken from the New King James Version®. Copyright © 1982 by Thomas Nelson. Used by permission. All rights reserved.

All rights reserved worldwide.

Translational emendations, amplifications, and paraphrases are by the author.

#### **Table of Contents**

Introduction

Chapter 1: The Divine Purpose for Israel

Chapter 2: The Historical Journey of Israel

Chapter 3: The Role of Prophecy in Israel's Story

Chapter 4: The Cost of Disobedience

Chapter 6: Jerusalem: God's Chosen City

Chapter 7: The Davidic Covenant and Jerusalem's Future

Chapter 8: When the World is Against Israel

Chapter 9: The Spiritual Battle for Israel

Chapter 10: Israel's Future

Chapter 11: The Messianic Hope of Israel

Chapter 12: Israel and the Nations

Chapter 13: The Church's Role in Supporting Israel

Chapter 14: Israel in the End-Times: Prophetic Fulfillment

Chapter 15: Conclusion: Why Israel Still Matters

#### Introduction

There has never been a time quite like this. In a world overwhelmed by cultural chaos, geopolitical uncertainty, and spiritual confusion, one small nation continues to demand the world's attention: Israel. From headlines and UN resolutions to border conflicts and diplomatic negotiations, Israel remains at the epicenter of global conversation. But for followers of Jesus Christ, the importance of Israel extends beyond politics and global headlines—it reaches deep into the heart of God's redemptive plan.

This book is not an attempt to defend every decision made by the modern State of Israel. Nor is it a call to elevate one people group above another. Instead, it is a biblical exploration of Israel's Place in God's Eternal Plan, and therefore, why it should still matter to us. Through prophecy, covenants, and God's enduring promises, Scripture presents Israel as a nation uniquely called, disciplined, preserved, and destined to play a central role in the final chapter of history.

Many in the Church today have lost sight of this. Some have dismissed Israel's role altogether, while others have embraced theological frameworks that sideline or replace Israel with the Church. In doing so, they have unknowingly disconnected from key elements of God's revealed plan. This book is written to challenge that trend—not with condemnation, but with clarity. It's written to reignite a passion for God's Word and a desire to see His promises fulfilled exactly as He declared.

Supporting Israel is not about adopting a political position; it is about aligning our hearts with God's heart. It's about recognizing the unfolding prophetic story that began in the ancient past and continues today. It's about seeing God's character in His faithfulness to a people who have often wandered, but who remain chosen. And most importantly, it's about understanding how Israel's story is intricately woven into our own—because the return of the Messiah is tied to the restoration of Israel.

Whether you are well-versed in Bible prophecy or just beginning to explore this topic, this book was written with you in mind. Each chapter will build upon the last, offering biblical insight, historical context, and spiritual application. We will not only study what God has said about Israel, but also what it means for the Church today and in the days to come.

You won't find sensationalism here. You will find Scripture. You will find truth. And you will find hope rooted in the unchanging promises of God.

#### **Chapter 1: The Divine Purpose for Israel**

### Israel's Calling - God's Specific Call to Israel as His Chosen People

From the beginning, God set Israel apart as a nation with a unique calling and purpose. In *Exodus 19:5-6*, God declared to the Israelites,

"Now therefore, if you will indeed obey My voice and keep My covenant, then you shall be a special treasure to Me above all people; for all the earth is Mine. And you shall be to Me a kingdom of priests and a holy nation. These are the words which you shall speak to the children of Israel."

These verses reveal the divine intention behind Israel's existence: to serve as a conduit of God's truth and to reflect His holiness to the world. Unlike any other nation, Israel was chosen to be God's "special treasure," a people who would carry His name and live according to His covenant.

Israel's calling was not about favoritism but responsibility. As a kingdom of priests, their mission was to mediate between God and humanity, proclaiming His laws and demonstrating His character. This priestly role meant that Israel's actions carried significant weight, as they were meant to be an example to the surrounding nations. The covenant was central to this relationship, requiring obedience and faithfulness to God's commands. By living in accordance with His laws, Israel was to reveal the character of God—His justice, mercy, and holiness—to the world.

Throughout their history, Israel faced both triumphs and failures in fulfilling this calling. From their miraculous exodus from Egypt to their eventual settlement in the Promised Land, God's hand was evident in guiding and protecting them. Yet, their disobedience and idolatry often led to judgment and exile. Even in these moments, God's purpose for Israel remained steadfast, and He continued to call them back to Himself through the prophets.

# The Role of Israel in Redemption - Israel as the Conduit for God's Plan of Salvation through Jesus Christ

Israel's purpose reaches its ultimate fulfillment in God's plan of redemption through Jesus Christ. As Paul wrote in *Romans 9:4-5*,

"who are Israelites, to whom pertain the adoption, the glory, the covenants, the giving of the law, the service of God, and the promises; of whom are the fathers and from whom, according to the flesh, Christ came, who is over all, the eternally blessed God. Amen." Through Israel, God provided the foundation for salvation history, culminating in the birth of the Messiah.

The lineage of Jesus Christ is deeply rooted in Israel's history. The promises given to Abraham, Isaac, and Jacob established the nation through which the Savior would come. God's covenant with Abraham in *Genesis* 12:3 declared,

"I will bless those who bless you, and I will curse him who curses you; and in you all the families of the earth shall be blessed."

This blessing ultimately came to fruition in Christ, whose life, death, and resurrection provide salvation to all who believe.

The giving of the law at Mount Sinai further highlights Israel's role in God's redemptive plan. The law revealed humanity's need for a Savior by exposing the depth of sin and the impossibility of achieving righteousness through human effort. Additionally, the sacrificial system instituted in the Mosaic law served as a foreshadowing of Christ's ultimate sacrifice. Each offering and atonement pointed forward to the Lamb of God who would take away the sin of the world (*John 1:29*).

The temple worship established in Israel was another critical aspect of their redemptive role. The temple represented God's presence among His people, and its rituals symbolized the necessity of holiness and atonement. These practices were not an end in themselves but a shadow of the greater reality found in Jesus, the true temple and ultimate High Priest (*Hebrews 9:11-12*).

Without Israel, there would be no Christ. Their role in God's redemptive plan underscores His sovereignty and faithfulness in orchestrating history to bring salvation to all nations through one chosen people.

# God's Faithfulness to His People - How God's Promises to Israel Are Eternal

God's faithfulness to Israel is an unshakable truth rooted in His character. As *2 Timothy 2:13* states,

"If we are faithless, He remains faithful; He cannot deny Himself."

Despite Israel's recurring disobedience and unfaithfulness, God has never abandoned His promises to them. His covenant with Israel is not conditional upon their perfection but is sustained by His steadfast love and faithfulness. Throughout history, Israel has faced exile, persecution, and dispersion, yet God's promises remain intact. The prophetic books of the Old Testament are filled with declarations of restoration and hope for Israel, underscoring that God's plans for His people are eternal. *Ezekiel 37* vividly describes the vision of dry bones coming to life, symbolizing Israel's national and spiritual restoration. This passage, along with others, reminds us that God's purposes for Israel are not finished. They are part of His unfolding plan that will culminate in the return of Christ and the establishment of His kingdom.

Even in the New Testament, God's faithfulness to Israel is affirmed. Paul, in *Romans* 11:1-2, asks,

"I say then, has God cast away His people? Certainly not! For I also am an Israelite, of the seed of Abraham, of the tribe of Benjamin. God has not cast away His people whom He foreknew."

He goes on to explain that there is a remnant chosen by grace and that God's gifts and calling are irrevocable.

"For the gifts and the calling of God are irrevocable." Romans 11:29

This assurance reflects the enduring nature of God's covenant with Israel. Even in the face of challenges, God's promises to Israel remain secure, reaffirming that His plan for the nation will come to fruition. This is why it is crucial for Christians to engage with Israel, support her, and pray for her, understanding that God's covenant with Israel is unbreakable and His purposes are unwavering.

The modern state of Israel is a testament to God's faithfulness. Despite centuries of dispersion and persecution, the Jewish people have been regathered in their ancestral homeland, fulfilling numerous biblical prophecies. This restoration is a precursor to the ultimate fulfillment of God's promises, when Christ will reign as King in Jerusalem and bring peace to the world.

Beyond Israel's prophetic restoration, their journey offers further insight into the heart of God and the nature of His dealings with humanity.

The unfolding story of Israel also reveals the mystery of divine patience. While human history often judges nations by military strength, economic power, or cultural influence, God's dealings with Israel emphasize covenant, grace, and long-suffering. Over the centuries, Israel's survival amidst relentless opposition testifies not only to God's protection but to His willingness to work through flawed humanity to accomplish His will. Their continued existence and prophetic restoration are not accidental—they are evidence of God's sovereignty operating through time, shaping history toward His predetermined end.

Additionally, Israel's journey highlights the interplay between divine election and human accountability. Though chosen, Israel was not exempt from discipline and judgment. Their exile, suffering, and dispersion came as consequences of rebellion, yet

always with the goal of correction and eventual restoration. This paradox—that a chosen nation could experience both divine favor and discipline—reminds us that election does not eliminate responsibility. Instead, it magnifies it. Israel's example invites believers to walk humbly, recognizing that privilege in God's plan always comes with the call to obedience and trust.

As Christians, understanding God's divine purpose for Israel deepens our faith and enriches our perspective on His sovereignty. God's relationship with Israel is a testimony to His faithfulness and the reliability of His promises. If God remains true to His covenant with Israel, we can trust Him to be faithful in His promises to us through Christ.

Furthermore, recognizing Israel's role in redemption fosters a sense of humility and gratitude. Salvation came to the world through the Jewish people, and as Paul reminds us in *Romans 11*, Gentile believers have been grafted into the olive tree of Israel.

"And if some of the branches were broken off, and you, being a wild olive tree, were grafted in among them, and with them became a partaker of the root and fatness of the olive tree, do not boast against the branches. But if you do boast, remember that you do not support the root, but the root supports you." Romans 11:17-18

This grafting does not replace Israel but unites us in God's redemptive plan, affirming that His covenant with them still stands.

This understanding also challenges Christians to stand with Israel in prayer and support. *Psalm 122:6* exhorts believers,

"Pray for the peace of Jerusalem: May they prosper who love you."

Such prayers align our hearts with God's purposes and demonstrate our recognition of Israel's unique place in His plan.

Finally, the story of Israel serves as a reminder of God's unchanging character. Just as He has been faithful to His covenant people, He will be faithful to all who place their trust in Him. *The future of Israel is the future of the world*.

#### **Chapter 2: The Historical Journey of Israel**

# From Abraham to the Exodus - God's Covenant with Abraham and the Journey to Egypt

The historical journey of Israel begins with God's covenant with Abraham, a moment that set the foundation for His relationship with the nation. In *Genesis 12:1-3*, God called Abram, saying,

"Get out of your country, from your family and from your father's house, to a land that I will show you. I will make you a great nation; I will bless you and make your name great; and you shall be a blessing. I will bless those who bless you, and I will curse him who curses you; and in you all the families of the earth shall be blessed."

This covenant established Israel as God's chosen people, promising land, descendants, and a divine mission to bless the world.

Abraham's journey was one of faith and obedience. He left his homeland and followed God's leading to Canaan, the land promised to his descendants. Over the generations, this promise began to take shape. Isaac, the son of promise, and Jacob, whose name was later changed to Israel, became patriarchs of the nation. Jacob's twelve sons would form the tribes of Israel, setting the stage for the fulfillment of God's covenant.

However, the journey to nationhood was not without hardship. The story of Joseph, sold into slavery by his brothers, illustrates God's providential care in times of suffering. Through Joseph's rise to power in Egypt, God preserved the family of Israel during a severe famine. Yet, what began as a refuge in Egypt turned into centuries of slavery as a new Pharaoh oppressed the Israelites. This period of bondage was not the end of their story but a preparation for their miraculous deliverance.

#### The Exodus and Covenant at Sinai - Israel's Formation as a Nation

The Exodus marks the defining moment of Israel's formation as a nation. Through Moses, God demonstrated His power by delivering His people from slavery with signs and wonders, culminating in the parting of the Red Sea. This miraculous event is a cornerstone of Israel's identity, celebrated annually in the Passover.

At Mount Sinai, God established His covenant with Israel, giving them the Ten Commandments and the laws that would govern their lives. In *Exodus 19:5-6*, God declared,

"Now therefore, if you will indeed obey My voice and keep My covenant, then you shall be a special treasure to Me above all people; for all the earth is Mine. And you shall be to Me a kingdom of priests and a holy nation."

This covenant solidified their identity as God's people and outlined their responsibility to live according to His standards.

The giving of the law was not merely about rules but about relationship. Through the law, God revealed His holiness and called His people to reflect His character. The covenant at Sinai also emphasized the importance of worship, with detailed instructions for the construction of the Tabernacle, where God's presence would dwell among His people. This tangible representation of God's presence reinforced His commitment to Israel and their unique role in His plan.

# The Kings and Kingdom - The Rise of Israel under Saul, David, and Solomon

Israel's journey continued with the establishment of the monarchy. The demand for a king arose during the time of Samuel, as the people sought to be like other nations. God granted their request, and Saul became Israel's first king. However, Saul's disobedience led to his downfall, and God chose David, a man after His own heart, to succeed him.

Under David's reign, Israel experienced a period of expansion and prosperity. David captured Jerusalem, making it the political and spiritual center of the nation. He also brought the Ark of the Covenant to Jerusalem, signifying God's presence and uniting the people in worship. God's covenant with David in *2 Samuel 7:12-16* promised that his descendants would reign forever, a prophecy ultimately fulfilled in Jesus Christ.

David's son Solomon brought the kingdom to its zenith, building the magnificent Temple in Jerusalem. This structure became the focal point of Israel's worship and a symbol of God's presence among His people. However, Solomon's later years were marked by compromise, as his marriages to foreign women led to idolatry. This spiritual decline set the stage for the eventual division of the kingdom and subsequent periods of exile.

The division of the kingdom marked the beginning of a turbulent period in Israel's history—one that revealed both the consequences of rebellion and the depths of God's enduring mercy.

The divided kingdom era brought with it a cycle of corruption, idolatry, and divine warning. Ten tribes formed the northern kingdom of Israel, while Judah remained in the south. Though God raised up prophets to call both kingdoms to repentance, their messages were often ignored or rejected. The northern kingdom fell to Assyria in 722 BC, a sobering consequence of persistent disobedience. Later, Judah was taken into

Babylonian captivity in 586 BC. Yet even in judgment, God's grace remained. Through prophets like Isaiah, Jeremiah, and Ezekiel, He promised restoration, speaking of a remnant who would return and a future filled with hope.

This period also gave birth to some of the most powerful Messianic prophecies in Scripture. In the darkest moments of Israel's exile, God revealed glimpses of a coming Redeemer—a King who would rule in righteousness, a Servant who would suffer for the sins of the people, and a Shepherd who would gather the scattered flock. These promises sustained the faithful and kept alive the hope of redemption. Israel's history during the exile and return reminds us that God's plan is never derailed by human failure. Even when His people are at their lowest, He is already working toward their restoration and His greater purpose.

# How Israel's Historical Journey Mirrors the Challenges and Blessings Christians Face Today

The historical journey of Israel is more than a record of events; it is a reflection of the spiritual journey faced by all believers. Like Abraham, Christians are called to walk by faith, trusting God's promises even when the path is uncertain. The Exodus reminds us of God's power to deliver us from bondage, just as Christ has set us free from sin.

The covenant at Sinai highlights the importance of living in obedience to God's Word. As Israel was called to be a holy nation, Christians are called to live as ambassadors of Christ, demonstrating His love and truth to the world. The failures of Israel's kings serve as a warning against compromise and the dangers of forsaking God's commands for worldly gain.

Ultimately, the story of Israel is a testimony to God's faithfulness. Despite their failures, He never abandoned His people, and promises and He never will. Likewise, God remains faithful to His promises to us.

35Thus says the Lord, Who gives the sun for a light by day, The ordinances of the moon and the stars for a light by night, Who disturbs the sea, And its waves roar (The Lord of hosts is His name):36 "If those ordinances depart From before Me, says the Lord, Then the seed of Israel shall also cease From being a nation before Me forever." 37 Thus says the Lord "If heaven above can be measured, And the foundations of the earth searched out beneath, I will also cast off all the seed of Israel For all that they have done, says the Lord. Jeremiah 31:35-37

And the word of the Lord came to Jeremiah, saying, "Thus says the Lord: 'If you can break My covenant with the day and My covenant with the night, so that there will not be day and night in their season, then My covenant may also be broken with David My servant, so that he shall not have a son to reign on his throne, and with the Levites, the

priests, My ministers. As the host of heaven cannot be numbered, nor the sand of the sea measured, so will I multiply the descendants of David My servant and the Levites who minister to Me." Jeremiah 33:19-22

"Thus says the Lord: 'If My covenant is not with day and night, and if I have not appointed the ordinances of heaven and earth, then I will cast away the descendants of Jacob and David My servant, so that I will not take any of his descendants to be rulers over the descendants of Abraham, Isaac, and Jacob. For I will cause their captives to return, and will have mercy on them.'" Jeremiah 33:25-26

For I do not desire, brethren, that you should be ignorant of this mystery, lest you should be wise in your own opinion, that blindness in part has happened to Israel until the fullness of the Gentiles has come in. And so all Israel will be saved, as it is written: "The Deliverer will come out of Zion, And He will turn away ungodliness from Jacob; For this is My covenant with them, When I take away their sins." Romans 11:25-27

### **Chapter 3: The Role of Prophecy in Israel's Story**

There's something striking about the way prophecy has woven itself into Israel's story. From the very beginning, God has made His promises to Israel, and His Word has stood the test of time. But we live in a world that seems to ignore, distort, or even deny these promises. The world may try to erase Israel from the narrative, but God's plans cannot be thwarted. We can look back at the prophecies of old, and the way they're playing out in our world today, and see that God's Word is unshakable. God's promises are not only historical but also ongoing, being fulfilled even as we speak. What happened to Israel in the past points directly to what is unfolding now, and the fulfillment of these prophecies continues to challenge us in how we understand God's purposes for the world. This chapter is about recognizing that no matter the obstacles, God is on track with His plan for Israel, and by extension, the world.

### **Prophetic Promise of Israel's Restoration**

Let's start with a key point in the story of Israel: the promise of their restoration. It's been over two thousand years since Israel was exiled from the land, scattered among the nations, and subjected to persecution. But the prophets spoke clearly that God would not leave His people in the wilderness forever. Isaiah's prophecy in Isaiah 11:11-12 paints a vivid picture of what was to come:

"It shall come to pass in that day that the Lord shall set His hand again the second time to recover the remnant of His people who are left, from Assyria and Egypt, from Pathros and Cush, from Elam and Shinar, from Hamath and the islands of the sea. He will set up a banner for the nations, and will assemble the outcasts of Israel, and gather together the dispersed of Judah from the four corners of the earth" Isaiah 11:11-12

This wasn't just a passing promise. It was a vision of God regathering His people, who had been torn apart by wars, invasions, and dispersion. This vision wasn't for an idealized future but a definite, planned event that God would bring about in His perfect timing. Fast forward to the 20th century, and we see the miraculous rebirth of Israel as a modern state in 1948. In one of the most stunning events of modern history, after centuries of being scattered, oppressed, and nearly destroyed, the Jewish people found themselves back in their homeland. The world watched as God's Word became flesh once again before their eyes.

What's even more remarkable is how Israel has continued to thrive. Despite facing relentless opposition from many of the nations around them, Israel stands firm. This isn't simply a political event—it's a prophetic reality. Israel's survival, its return to the

land, and its resurgence in strength despite decades of threats are testimony to the validity of God's promises. For those who believe the Bible, Israel's modern-day existence should be one of the clearest signs that God is at work in this world. God's plans for Israel are far from finished.

This prophetic restoration reminds us that God's Word cannot fail. Israel's reestablishment is a direct answer to God's promises. It gives us reason to trust that, just as God kept His Word in the past, He will keep His Word in the future.

#### **Prophecies of the Messiah**

And then there's the promise of the Messiah. Throughout the Old Testament, the prophets spoke of a coming Savior, a King who would restore Israel and bring salvation to the world. But this wasn't the kind of Messiah Israel was expecting. Instead of a conquering hero who would crush their enemies, the Messiah was described as a suffering servant. In Isaiah 53, the prophet lays out in chilling detail the story of a servant who would bear the sins of the world:

"Who has believed our report? And to whom has the arm of the Lord been revealed? For He shall grow up before Him as a tender plant, and as a root out of dry ground. He has no form or comeliness; and when we see Him, there is no beauty that we should desire Him. He is despised and rejected by men, a Man of sorrows and acquainted with grief. And we hid, as it were, our faces from Him; He was despised, and we did not esteem Him. Surely He has borne our griefs and carried our sorrows; yet we esteemed Him stricken, smitten by God, and afflicted. But He was wounded for our transgressions, He was bruised for our iniquities; the chastisement for our peace was upon Him, and by His stripes we are healed" Isaiah 53:1-5

This is a deeply significant prophecy. While the world expected the Messiah to come as a mighty warrior, Isaiah described Him as one who would suffer for the sake of His people. And this prophecy didn't only point to Israel—it pointed to the entire world. Jesus Christ was the fulfillment of this prophecy.

At His first coming, Jesus was rejected by His own people. He wasn't what they expected, and that is why they couldn't see that He was the one the prophets had spoken about. He didn't come with military power; He came in humility, as a servant. And He didn't come to establish a political kingdom, but a spiritual one. When He was crucified, Israel's rejection of Him culminated in the most profound moment in history: God's own Son, the Messiah, being offered as a sacrifice for the sins of the world.

Yet, this is not the end of the story. Jesus will return, as the same Messiah, but this time He will come not as a suffering servant, but as a reigning King. The second coming of

Christ is a promise that is still to be fulfilled. When Jesus returns, He will establish His kingdom on earth, and Israel will recognize Him for who He truly is. Zechariah 12:10 prophesies about this time:

"And I will pour on the house of David and on the inhabitants of Jerusalem the Spirit of grace and supplication; then they will look on Me whom they pierced. Yes, they will mourn for Him, as one mourns for his only son, and grieve for Him as one grieves for a firstborn"

When Jesus returns, Israel will realize that the one they rejected is the very Savior they've been waiting for. This is the future that awaits them. But it's a future that hinges on God's faithfulness. Even though Israel hasn't yet fully embraced their Messiah, the day will come when they will. And when that happens, the world will witness the fulfillment of everything that God has promised.

#### The Fulfillment of Prophecy

Now, Jesus' first coming didn't mark the end of prophecy—it only marked the beginning. There are still many promises that remain unfulfilled. Prophecies about a future kingdom, a time when Jesus will return to reign as King, and Israel will be restored. Jesus Himself spoke of His return in glory. In Luke 4:18-19, He read from Isaiah 61 and declared,

"The Spirit of the Lord is upon Me, because He has anointed Me to preach the gospel to the poor; He has sent Me to heal the brokenhearted, to proclaim liberty to the captives and recovery of sight to the blind, to set at liberty those who are oppressed; to proclaim the acceptable year of the Lord" Luke 4:18-19

But notice that He stopped mid-verse. He didn't read the entire prophecy. He didn't continue with the next part that speaks of the vengeance of God and the comforting of those who mourn in Zion. Why? Because the first part had already been fulfilled in His first coming. But the second part—the vengeance, the restoration, the establishment of God's Kingdom—will be fulfilled when He returns.

In the meantime, we're living in the "already but not yet" period of prophecy. Jesus has already come. Israel is already back in the land. But we are still waiting for the fullness of these prophecies to come to pass. We're waiting for the Messiah to return and make all things new. We're waiting for the restoration of Israel to be fully realized. We're waiting for the kingdom of God to be established.

The question is, are we living with this anticipation? Do we live as though God's promises will be fulfilled in our lifetime? Or are we distracted by the events of the day, so wrapped up in the chaos of this world that we forget the promises that lie ahead?

So what does this all mean for us? Why does Israel's story matter to us today? Because God's promises to Israel are a reminder of His faithfulness. If God has kept His promises to Israel, we can trust that He will keep His promises to us.

Romans 11:29 reminds us that

"For the gifts and the calling of God are irrevocable"

That means God's promises to Israel are still in effect. They are still His chosen people, and He is not finished with them. But it's not just about Israel. This is a reminder that God keeps His promises to us as well. If He can regather Israel after two thousand years of exile, He can certainly fulfill His promises to you and to me.

In times of uncertainty and doubt, we have a rock-solid foundation. The restoration of Israel is proof that God keeps His Word. We can look at Israel today and be reminded that God is faithful to His promises. When the world seems to be falling apart, when it feels like everything is heading in the wrong direction, we can rest in the certainty that God will complete His plan.

And if that's true—if God is this faithful to a nation He chose thousands of years ago—then we must take prophecy seriously, not just as ancient history, but as divine reality still unfolding in our world.

Prophecy isn't just about future headlines or mysterious symbols—it's about revealing the heart of God. Through prophecy, God speaks to His people with both warning and hope. For Israel, it meant that even in exile, they were not forgotten. Even in disobedience, they were not abandoned. And for us, it means we serve a God who communicates His plans in advance so that we're never left in the dark. As Amos 3:7 tells us, "Surely the Lord God does nothing, unless He reveals His secret to His servants the prophets." That revelation gives us clarity, courage, and confidence in the midst of uncertainty.

Prophecy also reminds us that God's timeline doesn't run on human expectations. Just as Israel had to wait centuries to see some promises fulfilled, we too are called to live in hopeful anticipation. The delay is not denial—it is preparation. Each fulfilled prophecy confirms that the rest will come to pass, just as He said. And when Jesus returns, the fulfillment won't be symbolic—it will be literal, global, and undeniable. What God has begun with Israel, He will bring to completion with power and glory.

We may not understand the fullness of God's plan right now. The world is full of confusion, chaos, and darkness. But we know this—God will accomplish His purposes, and He will be faithful to fulfill all His promises.

#### **Chapter 4: The Cost of Disobedience**

The reality of life is simple yet profound: our choices have consequences. Whether those choices lead to blessings or curses depends largely on the decisions we make, particularly when it comes to obedience to God. For Israel, the consequences of disobedience were both severe and heartbreaking. The text of Deuteronomy 28 lays out both the blessings for obedience and the curses for disobedience, serving as a stark warning to God's people. Israel's story is not just one of triumphs and victories; it's also a sobering account of the cost of turning away from God and the resulting consequences. But, as we will see, it's also a story of hope, as God promises restoration, even after His people fail.

#### The Blessings and Curses

In Deuteronomy 28:1-14, God provides a clear blueprint for Israel's prosperity, contingent upon their obedience to His commandments. These blessings are not merely spiritual in nature; they extend into every aspect of daily life. Israel's physical wellbeing, their security, and even their agricultural success are all tied to their fidelity to God.

"Now it shall come to pass, if you diligently obey the voice of the Lord your God, to observe carefully all His commandments which I command you today, that the Lord your God will set you high above all nations of the earth" Deuteronomy 28:1

This declaration reveals not just an offer of blessings but also a solemn call to action. If Israel were to follow God's ways, they would be blessed above all nations.

The blessings are comprehensive and all-encompassing. Israel's prosperity would overflow into every corner of their society, from their fields and flocks to their families and cities.

"Blessed shall you be in the city, and blessed shall you be in the country"
Deuteronomy 28:3

The blessings would cover everything from the agricultural fields to the marketplace, from the womb to the home. These blessings were a promise of God's divine favor and protection, setting Israel apart as His treasured possession.

More than material prosperity, the blessings promised a peace and security that would surpass anything the world could offer. Israel's enemies would be defeated, and their land would prosper.

"The Lord will cause your enemies who rise against you to be defeated before your face; they shall come out against you one way and flee before you seven ways" Deuteronomy 28:7

The security of the people would come from God's direct intervention, and they would be victorious over their adversaries. The abundance in the land would be a testament to God's favor, and His presence would be with them:

"The Lord will open to you His good treasure, the heavens, to give the rain to your land in its season, and to bless all the work of your hand" Deuteronomy 28:12

But these blessings came with one simple but profound condition: Israel is to obey God's commandments. The promises of peace, prosperity, and protection were not unconditional. The people were called to serve and honor God, and if they did so, they would see the fullness of His blessings in their lives.

However, the blessings were not the only aspect of this covenant. With disobedience came the curses—warnings that were as serious as the promises of blessing.

In Deuteronomy 28:15-37, the curses were laid out as a direct contrast to the blessings. If Israel chose to disobey God's commandments, they would face severe consequences. These curses were not arbitrary; they were a natural result of sin and rebellion against a holy God. God is not a God who merely punishes on a whim; His justice demands that sin be addressed, and these curses were the result of Israel's refusal to obey His commandments.

"But it shall come to pass, if you do not obey the voice of the Lord your God, to observe carefully all His commandments and His statutes which I command you today, that all these curses will come upon you and overtake you"

Deuteronomy 28:15

The curses listed in this passage are far-reaching and devastating. The first curse is economic: Israel's land would no longer yield its harvests, and their fields would be barren.

"Cursed shall you be in the city, and cursed shall you be in the country"
Deuteronomy 28:16

God had promised to bless their land if they obeyed, but if they turned away from Him, their land would become desolate.

The military defeats would be another consequence of their disobedience:

"The Lord will bring a nation against you from afar, from the end of the earth, as swift as the eagle flies, a nation whose language you will not understand"

Deuteronomy 28:49

Israel's enemies would no longer be defeated, but would overpower them. This curse would be a tangible sign of God's absence from their lives. When God is with His people, they are victorious, but when they turn from Him, they face defeat.

The worst of the curses, however, is the loss of God's presence. Israel would experience spiritual famine. The very things that had made Israel unique—their covenant with God, His presence among them, and their divine protection—would be removed. This would lead to their exile, where they would be scattered among the nations and suffer under foreign rule.

#### **Disobedience and Consequences**

Israel's story is marked by moments of incredible faithfulness, but more often than not, it is a story of disobedience. Time and time again, the people turned away from God. They worshiped idols, oppressed the poor, and violated His laws. Each act of disobedience brought them closer to the fulfillment of the curses outlined in Deuteronomy 28.

One of the most tragic moments in Israel's history was the Babylonian exile. Despite repeated warnings from prophets like Jeremiah, Israel refused to repent. They continued in their idolatry and sin, and as a result, they faced the consequences of their disobedience. In 2 Kings 25, we read about the fall of Jerusalem:

"Now it came to pass in the ninth year of his reign, in the tenth month, on the tenth day of the month, that Nebuchadnezzar king of Babylon, and all his army, came against Jerusalem and encamped against it" 2 Kings 25:1

The city was destroyed, the temple was burned, and the people were carried off into captivity. This was the direct result of their disobedience.

God's justice had come upon them. The curses of Deuteronomy 28 were not empty threats; they were fulfilled in the destruction of the city and the exile of God's people. The severity of the punishment was a direct reflection of the seriousness of their sin. The removal of the people from their land was a stark warning to future generations of the consequences of turning away from God.

Yet even in this moment of destruction, God's mercy was not absent. He had warned them, but His desire was always for their repentance and restoration. Even in exile, God spoke to His people through the prophets, promising that they would one day return to the land. God's faithfulness was not diminished by their unfaithfulness; His promises were sure, even in the midst of judgment.

#### The Restoration of Israel

The restoration of Israel was part of God's plan from the very beginning. Even as He laid out the curses for disobedience, He also promised that He would bring His people back from captivity. In Deuteronomy 30:1-10, God speaks of a future time when Israel would return to the land and be restored.

"Now it shall come to pass, when all these things come upon you, the blessing and the curse which I have set before you, and you call them to mind among all the nations where the Lord your God drives you, and you return to the Lord your God and obey His voice, according to all that I command you today, you and your children, with all your heart and with all your soul, that the Lord your God will bring you back from captivity, and have compassion on you"

Deuteronomy 30:1-3

This promise of restoration was fulfilled in part when the Israelites returned from Babylonian exile, but its ultimate fulfillment is still future. The modern-day return of the Jewish people to their land in 1948 is a partial fulfillment of God's promise, and the complete restoration will take place in the end times, when the Messiah returns to establish God's Kingdom. The restoration is a sign of God's mercy and faithfulness. Even after Israel's long history of failure, God remains true to His promises.

The restoration of Israel is also a picture of the hope that every believer has. When we repent and return to God, He promises to restore us. No matter how far we've fallen, God's mercy is greater than our sin. Israel's return from exile is a symbol of the forgiveness and restoration that is available to all who turn to God in repentance.

This pattern of judgment followed by mercy is not only a theme in Israel's history—it is a revelation of God's heart. He disciplines, but always with the intention of redeeming.

Throughout Scripture, God's discipline is never disconnected from His desire to restore. He does not delight in punishment for its own sake. In Ezekiel 18:23, God asks, "Do I have any pleasure at all that the wicked should die?... and not that he should turn from his ways and live?" The exile of Israel, the destruction of Jerusalem, and the scattering of the people were devastating—but they were never the end goal. God used these consequences as a refining fire, drawing His people back to Himself. In fact, some of the most beautiful promises of hope and renewal are found not in Israel's moments of strength, but in their moments of brokenness.

That same truth extends to every generation, including our own. The story of Israel reminds us that no failure is final with God. The God who scattered also regathers. The God who disciplines also delivers. Even when His people hit rock bottom, He remains ready to rebuild. This should stir both reverence and hope in the hearts of believers:

reverence because of God's holiness and justice, and hope because of His mercy and faithfulness. The cost of disobedience is real—but so is the promise of restoration for all who return to Him.

Thinking through this ought to cause the followers of Christ to understand the cost of disobedience. Just as Israel faced the consequences of turning away from God, the Church faces the same risks. When we compromise with the world, when we allow sin to enter our lives and our communities, we risk facing the consequences of disobedience. Sin always leads to destruction, and it always separates us from the blessings of God. But we should also understand that God's mercy is greater than our failure. Israel's story is not just a story of judgment; it's a story of redemption. It's a story that demonstrates the depth of God's mercy and His willingness to restore those who turn back to Him.

For the Church, this means that we must take sin seriously. We must not allow compromise to seep into our lives or our congregations. But it also means that we must hold onto the hope of restoration. When we repent and return to God, He is faithful to forgive and restore us. The restoration of Israel is a reminder that God's mercy is greater than our sin, and His love is deeper than our failure.

### **Chapter 5: Understanding God's Judgment and Mercy**

In this world of shifting morals and increasingly blurred lines between right and wrong, we are witnessing something both powerful and terrifying. The balance of God's judgment and mercy, while eternally unshakable, seems to be something the world increasingly ignores or distorts. If there is one thing we need to get straight—both as individuals and as a Church—it's this: God's judgment and His mercy go hand-in-hand. These two divine attributes are not mutually exclusive; they work together in a way that reveals the true heart of God. But there's a problem. Most of the world, and sadly, much of the Church, has lost sight of this delicate yet critical balance. In the case of Israel, the nation that God chose to be a beacon of His glory, both His judgment and His mercy have been displayed for all to see.

Why should the Church care? Because, quite simply, the stakes are higher than ever. If we don't understand the cost of disobedience, the reality of judgment, and the mercy available through repentance, we risk falling into the trap of spiritual apathy—where we turn a blind eye to God's clear expectations and then fail to reflect His mercy to the world. Israel's story is one of discipline, disobedience, and ultimately redemption. And it's a story that mirrors the journey we, as the Church, are called to walk as we engage with Israel today.

### God's Discipline of Israel

Let's face the truth: Israel was disciplined by God, and it wasn't pretty. The nation was chosen by God to be set apart, to be holy, to be a light to the nations. But time after time, Israel chose idolatry, oppression, and sin instead. God's chosen people turned their back on Him. So what did God do? He disciplined them. And it wasn't just some minor correction; it was a series of crushing judgments that spanned centuries—exile, war, destruction. It was not because God had grown angry with His people, but because God, in His love, could not let His people continue on a path of destruction.

"For whom the Lord loves He corrects, just as a father the son in whom he delights" Proverbs 3:12

We need to understand this: God's discipline wasn't a sign of hatred or rejection. It was a sign of His relentless love. He loved Israel too much to let them persist in sin without facing the consequences. The Babylonian exile, the destruction of the temple, the scattering of the people—all of these were painful reminders that sin has consequences. God could have abandoned Israel, but He didn't. Instead, He allowed them to experience the full weight of their rebellion, not as an end, but as a means to bring them back to Him.

When we read the Old Testament, we should not just see judgment and wrath, but a loving Father disciplining His children so they might be restored. That's the key: restoration. God's judgment always has a redemptive purpose. When we look at Israel's discipline, we must understand that God was not out to destroy them; He was out to purify them, to cleanse them of the sin that kept them from their full potential as His chosen people.

In fact, an understanding of Daniel chapter 9 and the 70th week as told to Daniel by the angel Gabriel gives us incredible clarity to understand the past, the present and what is coming.

While Daniel prayed, the angel Gabriel came to him in chapter 9:24 and says, "Seventy weeks are determined For your people and for your holy city, To finish the transgression, To make an end of sins, To make reconciliation for iniquity, To bring in everlasting righteousness, To seal up vision and prophecy, And to anoint the Most Holy."

The first sentence of verse 24 tells us what the 70 weeks are all about. "Seventy weeks are determined For your people and for your holy city." Daniel was an Israelite, so "his people" means the Children of Israel. Daniel's holy city was Jerusalem. He prayed facing the temple in Jerusalem three times every day.¹ Daniel's people and his holy city were the Jews and Jerusalem. So, the 70 weeks of years "are determined for" them.

What will God accomplish during the 70 weeks regarding Israel and Jerusalem?

- 1. He will "finish the transgression." The Hebrew word used for transgression is pesha`. It literally means "revolt" or "rebellion." To varying degrees, Israel has been fighting a war of rebellion against God since before the days of Moses. It hasn't ended yet, but during Daniel's 70<sup>th</sup> week, Israel's war of rebellion against God will end.
- 2. He will "make an end of sins." Those who say the 70 weeks have all come and gone need to ask themselves, if there has been an end of sin in Israel. It's such a big thing that you might wonder how it could be possible... until you remember Zechariah 12:10. "I will pour on the house of David and on the inhabitants of

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Daniel 6:10

- Jerusalem the Spirit of grace and supplication; then they will look on Me whom they pierced." Those last words are a giant arrow pointing to the cross. That's how God makes an end of sins.
- 3. He will "make reconciliation for iniquity." Israel will receive reconciliation and grace because they will turn in repentance to Jesus, the One "wounded for our transgressions... bruised for our iniquities."<sup>2</sup>
- 4. He will "bring in everlasting righteousness." This means that at the end of the 70<sup>th</sup> week God will usher in an age of righteousness that will never end.
- 5. He will "seal up vision and prophecy." Seal here means to close the books on the prophecies and promises to Israel. He can do that at the end of the 70<sup>th</sup> week because His reconciliation with Israel will be complete. The long-awaited millennium can begin.
- 6. He will "anoint the Most Holy." The holy of holies in the temple is sometimes called "the Most Holy." Some say that this refers to the dedication of the millennial temple's holy of holies. But I think this is talking about a Person rather than a place. Messiah, or Christ, means "Anointed One." I think this refers to the coronation of the King of kings and Lord of lords.

This is God's list of reasons for the tribulation.

### The Hope of Repentance

Here's the good news: God's judgment is never the final word. Ever. Despite the punishment Israel faced, God always held out hope for repentance and restoration.

"Who is a God like You, pardoning iniquity and passing over the transgression of the remnant of His heritage? He does not retain His anger forever, because He delights in mercy. He will again have compassion on us, and will subdue our iniquities. You will cast all our sins into the depths of the sea" Micah 7:18-19

This is a promise. A declaration of God's heart. No matter how far Israel wandered, God was willing to take them back if they would only return to Him in repentance. Israel's history is littered with periods of turning away from God—yet each time, God was ready

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Isaiah 53:5

to receive them back. This is where the power of repentance comes in. God's grace is not something that runs out; it's not limited by our past mistakes. "You will cast all our sins into the depths of the sea."

The beauty of God's mercy is that no matter the depth of sin, God's mercy is deeper still.

"But He was wounded for our transgressions, He was bruised for our iniquities; the chastisement for our peace was upon Him, and by His stripes we are healed" Isaiah 53:5

Through Jesus, God extended the ultimate mercy—He bore the punishment for sin so that we could be restored. Just as Israel had hope in the depths of their judgment, so we, too, have hope through repentance and Jesus Christ.

This is where the Gospel shines. Through Jesus, we are offered the ultimate restoration. God is not looking for perfection; He's looking for repentance. He's looking for hearts that will turn back to Him, no matter how far they've gone. And this is what the Church must recognize: there is always hope of restoration, no matter how far Israel or any of us have fallen.

#### **Redemption Through Jesus**

God's judgment was real, but God's mercy was even more powerful. And the ultimate fulfillment of that mercy came through Jesus Christ. Jesus is not just the fulfillment of God's mercy for the world; He is the fulfillment of God's promise to Israel. In Jesus, God's justice and mercy met head-on. Jesus took the full brunt of God's judgment for sin, not just for Israel, but for the entire world.

"For God so loved the world that He gave His only begotten Son, that whoever believes in Him should not perish but have everlasting life" John 3:16

Jesus is the final answer to the question of God's judgment and mercy. On the cross, He bore the punishment for the sin of the world, fulfilling the righteous judgment of God, but He also made a way for mercy to be extended to all who would believe.

"But He was wounded for our transgressions, He was bruised for our iniquities; the chastisement for our peace was upon Him, and by His stripes we are healed" Isaiah 53:5

Through Jesus, the ultimate fulfillment of God's judgment and mercy, all people can find restoration.

Here's what we need to understand: Jesus didn't just come to offer salvation to the Gentiles. He came to Israel first. He came as the fulfillment of the promises God made to His people. Yet, Israel rejected Him. But that didn't stop God's plan. Through Israel's

rejection, the Gospel went out to the Gentiles. But make no mistake: God is not done with Israel. His promises to Israel are irrevocable, and one day, Israel will turn to Him and receive Jesus as their Messiah.

In Jesus, God's justice was satisfied, and His mercy was poured out for all. Jesus is the bridge between God's judgment and mercy, fulfilling both perfectly. As the Church, we must recognize this and understand that it is through Jesus alone that anyone—whether Jew or Gentile—can be saved.

But if the Church truly grasps this truth, it must do more than affirm it—it must reflect it in the way we view God's dealings with Israel and with ourselves.

We cannot overlook the prophetic nature of God's mercy and judgment. Both are woven into His redemptive timeline, not just as abstract ideas but as visible realities. In Israel's exile, we see the reality of judgment. In Israel's regathering, we see the power of mercy. Both events speak louder than words—testifying that God is not passive toward sin, but neither is He absent in grace. These realities aren't just meant for theological reflection; they are meant to stir the Church to repentance, to urgency, and to humility. Israel's story isn't finished because God's mercy isn't exhausted—and neither is His standard of holiness diminished.

The Church today must resist the temptation to view either judgment or mercy in isolation. Emphasizing mercy while ignoring justice leads to moral compromise. Emphasizing judgment without mercy breeds self-righteousness. Jesus embodied both perfectly, and we are called to do the same. Just as Israel was disciplined but never abandoned, so too should our ministry to the world—and to Israel—be marked by truth and grace. In every age, God calls His people to embody both: to confront sin with courage, and to extend mercy with compassion. If we fail to do both, we misrepresent the heart of God.

# The Balance of Judgment and Mercy that the Church has the opportunity to Reflect in Their Dealings with Israel

The Church ought to reflect the balance of judgment and mercy that is seen in God's dealings with Israel. We cannot ignore the reality of Israel's rejection of Jesus, nor can we forget that God has a plan to restore His people. Israel's story is not over. God's plan includes Israel in redemption of mankind. From Abraham to Jacob, David, Mary, Joseph and the birth of Jesus, the Jewish Messiah. And Jesus will return to Israel in Zion to the twelve tribes of Jacob. To stand with Israel does not mean that we ignore sins and support all things politically when it comes to Israel. But it does mean that we understand God's covenant with them and that we pray for them and declare the hope of Jesus to them.

"For I do not desire, brethren, that you should be ignorant of this mystery, lest you should be wise in your own opinion, that blindness in part has happened to Israel until the fullness of the Gentiles has come in" Romans 11:25

The Church ought not adopt a posture of judgment toward Israel, but a posture of mercy and hope. We are called to declare the Gospel to all people, including Israel, because we know that God's mercy is available to anyone who repents. We must not adopt a mindset that sees Israel as beyond God's grace. If anything, we should be praying that Israel comes to know Jesus as their Messiah, just as we came to know Him.

At the same time, the Church must stand firm in truth. God's judgment on sin is real. While we must offer mercy, we must not water down the reality of judgment. Israel's rejection of Jesus has consequences, and those consequences are serious. But God's mercy is greater. And in the end, Israel will experience that mercy, as will the world, through Jesus Christ.

In a world increasingly hostile to the truth, the Church must reflect God's balance of judgment and mercy. We must not shy away from proclaiming the truth, but we must also extend mercy to those who have fallen short. As God has shown mercy to Israel and to us, we are called to extend that same mercy to a lost world, trusting that God's plan for redemption is still unfolding. His judgment is just, but His mercy is greater. And it's in that mercy that we find our hope.

#### **Chapter 6: Jerusalem: God's Chosen City**

Jerusalem stands as the focal point of God's divine plan for both Israel and the world. It is more than just a city; it is the center of God's heart. A place of divine encounters, sacred history, and spiritual power, Jerusalem carries deep significance in both the past and the future. As the city that holds God's chosen presence and promises, Jerusalem stands as the living testament of God's faithfulness to His people and His purpose for the world. In this chapter, we will explore the spiritual importance of Jerusalem, its promised restoration, and its role in both the Old and New Testaments as it aligns with God's redemptive purposes.

#### Jerusalem's Spiritual Significance

Psalm 48:1-2 gives us a glimpse of the grandeur of Jerusalem, calling it "the city of our God" and describing it as "the joy of the whole earth." These verses not only capture the physical beauty of Jerusalem but also reveal its profound spiritual weight. It is the city where God chose to make His dwelling among His people, and through this divine choice, Jerusalem became the epicenter of God's redemptive work. As the psalmist writes,

"Great is the Lord, and greatly to be praised in the city of our God, in His holy mountain. Beautiful in elevation, the joy of the whole earth, is Mount Zion on the sides of the north, the city of the great King" Psalm 48:1-2

The city of Jerusalem is spiritually significant because it was chosen by God to be the place where His presence would dwell. It is the site where the Ark of the Covenant was housed, where King David established his reign, and where King Solomon built the magnificent temple to God. The temple in Jerusalem was not merely a building; it was a sacred space where heaven and earth met, and where Israel could come to worship the one true God. Jerusalem, as the center of worship, symbolized the deep relationship between God and His people, and it was the city where God's glory was most fully revealed on earth.

This city was the physical manifestation of God's covenant with Israel, a promise of His faithfulness, holiness, and presence. It was in Jerusalem that God's people gathered to offer sacrifices, celebrate the feasts, and encounter His glory. For Israel, Jerusalem was a symbol of God's eternal love and commitment to them. Even when Israel was exiled or conquered, Jerusalem remained the focal point of their hope and longing, because it was God's chosen place.

But Jerusalem's spiritual significance is not confined to the Old Testament; it is a city that holds a central role in God's future plans for the world. The future of Jerusalem is intertwined with the ultimate fulfillment of God's promises. As we will see, Jerusalem is not just a city of Israel's past; it is a city of eternal hope, connected with God's future redemption of the entire world.

#### The Promise of Restoration

Throughout the Bible, God speaks of the restoration of Jerusalem, a future event that will bring the city back to its original splendor and spiritual significance. This promise of restoration is not just about the physical rebuilding of Jerusalem; it also encompasses the spiritual renewal that will accompany this restoration. In Jeremiah 33:24-26, God makes a powerful declaration about Jerusalem's future:

"24 "Have you not considered what these people have spoken, saying, 'The two families which the Lord has chosen, He has also cast them off? Thus they have despised My people, as if they should no more be a nation before them.

25 "Thus says the Lord: 'If My covenant is not with day and night, and if I have not appointed the ordinances of heaven and earth, 26 then I will cast away the descendants of Jacob and David My servant, so that I will not take any of his descendants to be rulers over the descendants of Abraham, Isaac, and Jacob. For I will cause their captives to return, and will have mercy on them.'"

These verses affirm God's unchanging promise to restore Jerusalem to its rightful place at the heart of His redemptive plan. Though the city had experienced destruction, desecration, and exile, God's covenant with Jerusalem is irrevocable. His plan for the city is eternal, and He will bring about a restoration that will not only rebuild the physical city but will also renew the spiritual vitality that once existed in it.

In Zechariah 8:3-4, God further speaks of His intention to return to Jerusalem and restore it:

"Thus says the Lord: 'I will return to Zion, And dwell in the midst of Jerusalem. Jerusalem shall be called the City of Truth, The Mountain of the Lord of hosts, The Holy Mountain.'

4 "Thus says the Lord of hosts: 'Old men and old women shall again sit In the streets of Jerusalem, Each one with his staff in his hand Because of great age."

Here, God promises not just a rebuilding of the city but a complete spiritual renewal. Jerusalem will once again be the city of truth, where God's presence dwells and where His people experience peace, prosperity, and the fullness of His blessings.

The promise of Jerusalem's restoration is ultimately fulfilled in the coming of the New Jerusalem. In the book of Revelation, we see a picture of this restored city, one that transcends the boundaries of time and space. Revelation 21:2 describes the New Jerusalem as descending from heaven, adorned as a bride for her husband. This New Jerusalem represents the culmination of God's redemptive work, where God's people will dwell with Him forever in a perfect, unbroken relationship.

This future Jerusalem will be a place of peace, where there will be no more death, sorrow, or pain. It will be a place where God's glory is fully manifested and where His people will experience the fullness of His love and presence. Jerusalem's restoration is not just a return to its former glory; it is the establishment of God's eternal kingdom on earth, where His will is perfectly done.

#### Jerusalem in the New Testament

The New Testament further illuminates Jerusalem's significance, particularly through the life and ministry of Jesus Christ. In Luke 13:34-35, Jesus expresses His sorrow over Jerusalem's rejection of God's messengers and, ultimately, Himself:

"O Jerusalem, Jerusalem, the one who kills the prophets and stones those who are sent to her! How often I wanted to gather your children together, as a hen gathers her brood under her wings, but you were not willing! See! Your house is left to you desolate; and assuredly, I say to you, you shall not see Me until the time comes when you say, 'Blessed is He who comes in the name of the Lord!" Luke 13:34-35

In this passage, we see the deep sorrow of Jesus as He reflects on Jerusalem's rejection of God's plan for them. Despite His love and desire to gather the people of Jerusalem under His care, they were unwilling to accept Him as the Messiah. Jesus foretells the desolation of the city, a reference to the destruction of Jerusalem in 70 AD by the Romans. Yet, even in His sorrow, there is hope. Jesus speaks of a future day when Jerusalem will recognize Him as the Messiah and welcome Him with shouts of praise:

"Blessed is He who comes in the name of the Lord!"

This prophecy points to the day when Jesus will return, and Jerusalem will once again be the place where God's people receive their King.

For Christians, Jerusalem in the New Testament serves as both a warning and an encouragement. It warns us of the consequences of rejecting God's call, as seen in

Israel's history. Yet it also reminds us that God has not abandoned His people. Jerusalem remains central to God's eternal plan, and He will bring about its restoration. This future hope encourages believers to look forward to the day when Christ will return to Jerusalem and establish His eternal kingdom.

# Understanding Jerusalem's Role in Both God's Redemptive Plan and as a Call for Christian Engagement

Jerusalem is not just a geographical city—it is the symbol of God's faithfulness, justice, and mercy. For the Church, understanding Jerusalem's spiritual significance is critical in our relationship with Israel and our role in God's redemptive plan for the world. The restoration of Jerusalem is a reminder that God is sovereign and will fulfill every promise He has made. As believers, it is imperative to recognize Jerusalem's centrality in God's eternal purposes.

The history of Jerusalem—its triumphs and failures—reveals the larger story of God's grace at work. Despite the city's rejection of God's messengers, His love for Jerusalem has never wavered. God has promised to restore the city, and He will do so in His perfect timing. Jerusalem's future restoration points to the ultimate hope we have in Christ: that one day, God's Kingdom will be fully realized, and His presence will dwell among us forever.

As Christians, we are called to engage with Jerusalem in a way that reflects our understanding of its significance in God's plan. We are instructed to pray for the peace of Jerusalem, recognizing that its peace is tied to the peace of the world. Psalm 122:6 says,

"Pray for the peace of Jerusalem: May they prosper who love you."

In conclusion, Jerusalem remains God's chosen city—one of immense spiritual significance, with a promise of restoration and a future role in God's eternal Kingdom. As we understand Jerusalem's role in both history and prophecy, we are reminded that it is not just a symbol of Israel's past but a beacon of hope for the future. Jerusalem calls us to engage with it in prayer, support, and anticipation of the day when God's Kingdom will come in full glory.

But our engagement with Jerusalem must go beyond sentiment—it must be rooted in Scripture and shaped by prophetic understanding.

Jerusalem is the city where God's covenants converge. From Abraham's journey to Mount Moriah to the future reign of Christ, the entire biblical narrative flows through this sacred space. It is the site of God's provision, His discipline, and His promised return. This convergence makes Jerusalem more than a historical relic—it makes it a living testimony of God's unfolding plan. To understand Jerusalem is to grasp the very heartbeat of redemptive history. It is where the veil was torn, where the Gospel was preached, and where the King will return in glory. This is not just theology—it is destiny.

Moreover, Jerusalem reminds us that God's promises are literal, not symbolic. The restoration of Jerusalem is not merely poetic—it's prophetic. When we pray for Jerusalem, we're not praying into myth or metaphor; we are aligning our hearts with a very real future that God Himself has declared. As the nations rage and history accelerates, Jerusalem remains the measuring rod of God's calendar. It is the prophetic clock ticking toward the culmination of the age. For the Church, to ignore Jerusalem is to misunderstand the urgency and hope embedded in Bible prophecy.

As we look to the future, we know that the restoration of Jerusalem is a sign of God's faithfulness and a reminder that His promises are sure.

#### **Chapter 7: The Davidic Covenant and Jerusalem's Future**

The Davidic Covenant is one of the most significant promises made by God in the Old Testament, and it is directly tied to the future of Jerusalem and Israel's Kingdom. This covenant, made between God and King David, promises that David's lineage will have an eternal throne, which would ultimately be fulfilled through Jesus Christ, the Messiah. As we explore the Davidic Covenant and its impact on Jerusalem, we will see how this promise of a future Kingdom is central to God's redemptive plan for both Israel and the world. Jerusalem plays a key role in the realization of these promises, and understanding its future is vital for Christians seeking to grasp the fullness of God's Kingdom.

#### The Promise to David

In 2 Samuel 7:12-16, God makes an eternal promise to David regarding his descendants. God tells David that his throne will last forever and that his son will build the temple. However, this promise reaches far beyond Solomon, David's immediate successor, and points toward a future eternal reign. God's words to David are:

"When your days are fulfilled and you rest with your fathers, I will set up your seed after you, who will come from your body, and I will establish his kingdom. He shall build a house for My name, and I will establish the throne of his kingdom forever. I will be his Father, and he shall be My Son. If he commits iniquity, I will chasten him with the rod of men, and with the blows of the sons of men. But My mercy shall not depart from him, as I took it from Saul, whom I removed from before you. And your house and your kingdom shall be established forever before you. Your throne shall be established forever" 2 Samuel 7:12-16

The covenant made with David is both unconditional and everlasting. The promise is not only for David's immediate lineage but also has a messianic fulfillment. The throne of David will remain established forever, and the kingdom will be unshakable. This promise was not dependent on the personal righteousness of David's descendants; even when they failed, God's mercy would sustain His promise. God's words were not limited to a temporal, earthly kingdom. Rather, the covenant extends to an eternal kingdom that would be realized in the person of Jesus Christ.

For centuries, this promise remained a cornerstone of Israel's hope. The people of Israel looked forward to the coming of a Messiah, one who would sit on David's throne, restore Israel to its rightful place, and bring peace to the nation. The expectation of the Davidic

King is central to Jewish identity, even today, and it has profound significance for the Christian understanding of the Kingdom of God.

#### Jesus, the Fulfillment of the Davidic Covenant

The fulfillment of the Davidic Covenant came in the person of Jesus Christ. Matthew 1:1-16 traces Jesus' genealogy through David, establishing that Jesus is the rightful heir to David's throne. The genealogy begins with the words:

"The book of the genealogy of Jesus Christ, the Son of David, the Son of Abraham" Matthew 1:1

This opening statement connects Jesus to David, underscoring His role as the fulfillment of God's promise to David. Jesus is not only a descendant of David; He is the one who fulfills the eternal promise made to David that his throne would be established forever. The Davidic Covenant was not simply a promise for a future earthly king, but a prophecy about the coming of the eternal King who would rule over all nations and bring God's Kingdom into fullness.

In Luke 1:32-33, the angel Gabriel further clarifies the nature of Jesus' kingship when he announces to Mary:

"He will be great, and will be called the Son of the Highest; and the Lord God will give Him the throne of His father David. And He will reign over the house of Jacob forever, and of His kingdom there will be no end" Luke 1:32-33

This declaration echoes the promise made to David, but it also adds a crucial detail: Jesus will reign forever. His Kingdom is eternal, and it will never be defeated or passed on to another. The Davidic Covenant is realized in Jesus, the Messiah, who not only fulfills the promises of the Old Testament but also brings a new and better reality to the Kingdom of God.

Jesus' ministry on earth was marked by teachings about the Kingdom of God. He proclaimed that the Kingdom had arrived in His person and that He was the King of that Kingdom. While Jesus' first coming did not establish a physical, earthly throne in Jerusalem, His role as the Davidic King is central to the Christian understanding of God's redemptive plan. Jesus reigns now, in the hearts of believers, and one day, His Kingdom will be fully realized when He returns to Jerusalem as the King of kings.

### The Restoration of Israel's Kingdom

Despite the fulfillment of the Davidic Covenant in Jesus, the full realization of the Kingdom of God has yet to come. Prophecies about the restoration of Israel's Kingdom remain unfulfilled, and they point to a future event: the return of Jesus to establish His throne in Jerusalem. This future restoration is described in multiple places throughout the Old Testament, especially in Ezekiel 37:21-28, where God promises the restoration of Israel's kingdom in the last days:

"Then say to them, 'Thus says the Lord God: Surely I will take the children of Israel from among the nations, wherever they have gone, and will gather them from every side and bring them into their own land; and I will make them one nation in the land, on the mountains of Israel; and one king shall be king over them all; they shall no longer be two nations, nor shall they ever be divided into two kingdoms again" Ezekiel 37:21-22

This passage speaks of the regathering of the Jewish people from the nations and their reunification in the land of Israel. It also promises that they will have a single king who will rule over them, which points to the Messiah, the descendant of David, who will reign from Jerusalem. The prophecy continues:

"David My servant shall be king over them, and they shall all have one shepherd; they shall also walk in My judgments and observe My statutes and do them. Then they shall dwell in the land that I have given to Jacob My servant, where your fathers dwelt; and they shall dwell there, they, their children, and their children's children, forever; and My servant David shall be their prince forever" Ezekiel 37:24-25

This is a powerful promise that God will restore Israel to its rightful place, and the Jewish people will be ruled by the Messiah, the Son of David. The Kingdom of God will be established on earth, with Jerusalem as the center, and peace, justice, and righteousness will prevail.

In Revelation 21, the Apostle John envisions the New Jerusalem coming down from heaven, a glorious city that will be the eternal home of God's people. This city, described as a place of eternal peace and joy, will be the fulfillment of all the promises made to Israel and will be the ultimate manifestation of God's Kingdom on earth.

# Why Jerusalem is Pivotal for Christians in Understanding the Kingdom of God

For Christians, Jerusalem is not just a city of historical significance; it is the future capital of God's Kingdom. Understanding the role of Jerusalem in God's redemptive plan is essential for grasping the nature of the Kingdom of God. Jerusalem is where the Davidic Covenant will be fully realized when Jesus returns to reign as King. It is the city where God's throne will be established, and it will be the center of worship and justice for all nations.

The Davidic Covenant teaches us that God is faithful to His promises. The promise made to David about the eternal reign of his descendant is fulfilled in Jesus, and it offers Christians the assurance that God will fulfill His promises regarding the Kingdom of God. As we await the return of Jesus, we are called to live in the hope of His Kingdom, which will one day be established on earth, with Jerusalem as its eternal capital.

Jerusalem's role in the Kingdom of God should also motivate Christians to engage with the city in prayer and support. As we pray for the peace of Jerusalem (Psalm 122:6), we are aligning ourselves with God's purposes for the world. Jerusalem is not just the physical heart of Israel; it is the spiritual heart of God's plan for the redemption of all creation. As Christians, we should be deeply invested in seeing God's will done in Jerusalem, both now and in the future.

But our investment in Jerusalem must be more than symbolic—it should be rooted in an understanding of its prophetic future and kingdom purpose.

The city of Jerusalem will once again be the visible seat of divine government on earth. The prophets spoke not only of restoration but of rulership—where Messiah will reign with justice and righteousness. Isaiah 2:3 says, "For out of Zion shall go forth the law, and the word of the Lord from Jerusalem." This verse isn't metaphorical; it speaks of the day when Jesus, the Son of David, will rule the nations from His throne in Jerusalem. That city will no longer be marked by conflict and political tension but by peace, truth, and the unshakable authority of the King of kings.

This understanding shapes the way we live as Christians today. We are not waiting for a vague spiritual kingdom—we are anticipating a real King, on a real throne, in a real city. The Davidic Covenant assures us that God's redemptive plan is not just for the soul but for the whole world, including the restoration of Israel and the reign of Christ from Jerusalem. Knowing this should stir our urgency for evangelism, deepen our hope in God's promises, and ignite a longing for His return. Jerusalem is not only the historic foundation of our faith—it is the future capital of the world.

The city of Jerusalem will once again be the visible seat of divine government on earth. The prophets spoke not only of restoration but of rulership—where Messiah will reign with justice and righteousness. Isaiah 2:3 says, "For out of Zion shall go forth the law, and the word of the Lord from Jerusalem." This verse isn't metaphorical; it speaks of the day when Jesus, the Son of David, will rule the nations from His throne in Jerusalem. That city will no longer be marked by conflict and political tension but by peace, truth, and the unshakable authority of the King of kings.

This understanding shapes the way we live as Christians today. We are not waiting for a vague spiritual kingdom—we are anticipating a real King, on a real throne, in a real city. The Davidic Covenant assures us that God's redemptive plan is not just for the soul but for the whole world, including the restoration of Israel and the reign of Christ from Jerusalem. Knowing this should stir our urgency for evangelism, deepen our hope in God's promises, and ignite a longing for His return. Jerusalem is not only the historic foundation of our faith—it is the future capital of the world.

In conclusion, the Davidic Covenant and Jerusalem's future are inseparable. The promises made to David regarding his eternal throne point directly to Jesus, the King who will return to Jerusalem to establish God's eternal Kingdom. Jerusalem is the city of God's chosen people, the city where His throne will be established, and the city where the nations will gather to worship Him. Understanding the significance of Jerusalem is key to understanding the Kingdom of God and our role in it. As we look forward to the day when Jesus will return to reign, we can be confident that the promises made to David will be fully realized, and Jerusalem will once again be the center of God's redemptive work.

# **Chapter 8: When the World is Against Israel**

Throughout history, Israel has faced immense opposition, persecution, and exile. As a nation, Israel has often been subjected to suffering as a result of disobedience to God, but God has never abandoned His people. Even in their darkest moments, God has provided messages of hope, reminding His people that His promises to them are eternal. One of the most powerful messages of hope comes from the prophet Jeremiah, who speaks directly to the Israelites during their time of exile in Babylon. Jeremiah 29:10-14 offers profound encouragement to the people of Israel, assuring them that their exile is not the end of God's plan for them. This message has resonated throughout the centuries, especially as Israel continues to face opposition from the world. Today, Christians are called to stand in solidarity with Israel, supporting them during times of opposition and remembering that God's promises to Israel remain unshaken.

# The Reality of Israel's Exile

Israel's exile is a painful chapter in the nation's history, and it came as a direct consequence of their disobedience to God. The kingdom of Israel had been divided into two: the northern kingdom of Israel and the southern kingdom of Judah. Both kingdoms repeatedly turned away from God, worshipping false idols and engaging in sinful practices. Despite numerous warnings from the prophets, the people of Israel did not repent, and the judgment of God fell upon them.

In 722 BC, the northern kingdom of Israel was taken into exile by the Assyrians, and in 586 BC, the southern kingdom of Judah was conquered by the Babylonians. The Babylonians destroyed the city of Jerusalem, including the temple, and took the people of Judah into captivity. This event marked one of the lowest points in Israel's history. The Israelites were far from their homeland, living in a foreign land among people who worshipped idols and practiced pagan rituals. This exile was not only a physical separation from their land but also a spiritual and emotional separation from the God they had once known intimately.

In the midst of this darkness, the Israelites must have felt abandoned, as if God had turned His back on them. However, the exile was not an act of abandonment but a direct consequence of their sin. God had warned them through the prophets, but they had ignored His pleas for repentance. Yet, even in this judgment, God's plan for Israel was far from over. The exile was a form of discipline, a way for God to purify His people and prepare them for a future restoration.

The reality of Israel's exile serves as a reminder to Christians today that sin has consequences. While God is loving and merciful, He is also just. When God's people turn

away from Him and choose to live in disobedience, there are consequences. However, even in the midst of discipline, God's promises remain intact, and His desire is always for restoration.

# **God's Encouragement During Exile**

In the midst of Israel's exile, God sent a message of hope through the prophet Jeremiah. In Jeremiah 29:10-14, God speaks directly to the exiles in Babylon, offering them encouragement and assurance of a future restoration. The Israelites may have felt lost and hopeless, but God's message reminds them that their exile would not last forever. God says:

"For thus says the Lord: After seventy years are completed at Babylon, I will visit you and perform My good word toward you, and cause you to return to this place. For I know the thoughts that I think toward you, says the Lord, thoughts of peace and not of evil, to give you a future and a hope. Then you will call upon Me and go and pray to Me, and I will listen to you. And you will seek Me and find Me, when you search for Me with all your heart. I will be found by you, says the Lord, and I will bring you back from your captivity; I will gather you from all the nations and from all the places where I have driven you, says the Lord, and I will bring you to the place from which I caused you to be carried away captive" Jeremiah 29:10-14

This passage is one of the most beloved and quoted passages in the Bible, and it offers profound insight into God's heart for His people. Despite the suffering Israel was enduring in exile, God's plan was not for them to remain in captivity forever. He had a plan to bring them back to their land, and He assured them that their future was filled with hope. God knew the thoughts He had toward them, thoughts of peace and not of evil. He desired to restore them and to fulfill His promises to them.

God also told the Israelites that they would call upon Him and pray to Him, and He would listen to their cries. He promised that when they sought Him with all their hearts, they would find Him. This was not just a promise of physical restoration, but also a promise of spiritual renewal. God's people would once again experience the intimacy of fellowship with their Creator.

Jeremiah 29:10-14 offers a powerful message of hope for those in difficult circumstances. It reminds us that even when we face trials, God has a plan for our future. His thoughts toward us are always filled with peace and hope, even when we cannot see it in the present moment. As God spoke through the prophet Jeremiah, He assured the exiled Israelites of His promises for their future:

"For thus says the Lord: After seventy years are completed at Babylon, I will visit you and perform My good word toward you and cause you to return to this place. For I know the thoughts that I think toward you, says the Lord, thoughts of peace and not of evil, to give you a future and a hope. Then you will call upon Me and go and pray to Me, and I will listen to you. And you will seek Me and find Me, when you search for Me with all your heart. I will be found by you, says the Lord, and I will bring you back from your captivity; I will gather you from all the nations and from all the places where I have driven you, says the Lord, and I will bring you to the place from which I caused you to be carried away captive." Jeremiah 29:10-14

Just as God promised to restore Israel, He also promises to restore His people today. For the Christians who stand in solidarity with Israel, this passage provides a powerful reminder that God's promises are unbreakable and that He has a plan to restore Israel to its rightful place.

# **Modern-Day Opposition to Israel**

Throughout history, Israel has faced opposition from many nations, and this opposition continues today. The Jewish people have been scattered and persecuted for centuries, facing countless forms of antisemitism and hatred. From the destruction of the First and Second Temples in Jerusalem to the expulsion of Jews from various countries, the Jewish people have endured immense suffering. However, even in the face of this opposition, Israel has endured. The return of the Jewish people to their homeland in 1948 marked a miraculous restoration, but the challenges and opposition have not ceased.

One of the most pervasive forms of opposition to Israel today is antisemitism. Antisemitism is a form of hatred and prejudice directed against Jews, and it has been present for thousands of years. From the earliest days of Israel's history, the Jewish people have faced this hatred. The rise of the Nazi regime in the 20th century led to the Holocaust, where six million Jews were murdered, and antisemitism reached its most horrific expression. Despite the devastation of the Holocaust, Israel emerged as a nation once again in 1948, fulfilling God's promise of restoration.

However, even in modern times, Israel faces constant opposition. Antisemitism continues to be a global problem, and Israel is often the target of political and ideological attacks. Many nations and organizations around the world criticize Israel's actions and deny its right to exist. The ongoing Israeli-Palestinian conflict has exacerbated tensions, and the world's condemnation of Israel often overlooks the historical and biblical context of Israel's right to the land. Anti-Israel sentiment is

widespread, and the opposition to Israel's very existence remains a significant challenge for the Jewish state.

In addition to antisemitism, Israel also faces threats from hostile nations and terrorist groups that seek to destroy the nation. The ongoing conflict with Hamas in Gaza and Hezbollah in Lebanon, along with the threats posed by Iran, make Israel's security a constant concern. Despite these challenges, Israel has remained resilient, and its people continue to fight for their survival in a hostile world.

# How Christians Can Stand in Solidarity with Israel During Times of Opposition

The world has often been against Israel, but God's promises remain unchanged. Even in the face of opposition, God's plan for Israel continues to unfold, and the church has a vital role in standing with Israel. Just as God encouraged Israel during their exile, we can encourage Israel today by supporting them in prayer, standing against antisemitism, and advocating for their right to exist in peace.

As global pressure intensifies, Christians must be prepared to stand when it becomes unpopular—even dangerous—to do so. Scripture warns of a time when all nations will come against Jerusalem (Zechariah 12:3), and we are seeing the seeds of that reality today. Whether through media bias, international resolutions, or cultural narratives that distort truth, Israel finds herself increasingly isolated on the world stage. This is not merely political—it is spiritual. To stand with Israel is to align with God's redemptive plan, and that requires courage, clarity, and conviction rooted in the Word of God.

Silence is not neutrality—it is complicity. If the Church remains silent while Israel is vilified and persecuted, we risk repeating the failures of generations past. Now is the time for believers to speak up, to teach sound doctrine concerning Israel, and to lovingly correct the false teachings that have crept into the Church regarding God's covenant with His chosen people. The days ahead may be difficult, but those who stand with Israel will be standing on the side of God's eternal promises. And in that place, we find not only solidarity with Israel—but the assurance that we are aligned with God's heart and His unfolding plan for the nations.

# **Chapter 9: The Spiritual Battle for Israel**

# The Enemy's Strategy Against Israel

The spiritual battle for Israel is not a mere physical conflict fought with weapons and armies. No, it is a fierce, unseen war that rages in the spiritual realm, where the forces of evil relentlessly strive to thwart God's divine purposes for His chosen nation. From the very moment God promised Israel a land of their own, a promised land, the enemy has waged war against it—using every means at his disposal to attempt to erase God's covenant and break the faith of God's people. But as we'll see, the plans of the enemy are ultimately doomed to failure, for Israel is God's chosen nation, and no weapon formed against it will prosper.

The Bible makes it clear that Satan has a specific target in mind when it comes to Israel: to undermine God's promises, to destroy Israel's identity, and to prevent the coming of the Messiah. The enemy has stirred up nations against Israel, used false ideologies to distract and confuse, and sought to turn hearts away from the truth. This spiritual warfare is not simply about land disputes; it is about God's eternal plan for redemption and the restoration of all things through Jesus Christ.

The Apostle Paul reminds us of the true nature of the battle in *Ephesians 6:12*:

"For we do not wrestle against flesh and blood, but against principalities, against powers, against the rulers of [a]the darkness of this age, against spiritual hosts of wickedness in the heavenly places."

The enemy's strategy has always been to attack the very heart of God's covenant with Israel, for he knows that the future of the world hinges upon Israel's fulfillment of God's prophetic plan.

The enemy's plans are seen in the rise of anti-Semitism, in the rejection of Israel as the rightful heir to the promises of God, and in the relentless attacks on the very existence of the nation. The devil knows that the Messiah will return to Jerusalem, and he will stop at nothing to keep the day of Israel's redemption from coming to pass.

Yet, as 2 Corinthians 10:4 declares, the reality of the spiritual warfare waged against Israel is not a reason for despair but a call to action.

"For the weapons of our warfare are not carnal, but mighty through God to the pulling down of strong holds,"

As believers, we have the privilege and responsibility to stand with Israel in this cosmic battle.

## The Role of Christians in Prayer

In the midst of the spiritual war for Israel, God has equipped His church with powerful tools to fight on Israel's behalf—tools that can shift the very course of history. Prayer is one of the most potent weapons in this battle. As Christians, we are called to intercede on behalf of Israel, asking God to protect His people, restore His land, and fulfill His promises. The prayers of the righteous are powerful, and God moves through the faithful intercession of His people.

Jeremiah 29:7 commands:

"And seek the peace of the city where I have caused you to be carried away captive, and pray to the Lord for it; for in its peace you will have peace."

God has called His people to pray for the peace of Jerusalem, the epicenter of His redemptive work. Through prayer, we can ask for God's intervention in the ongoing struggles of the Jewish people, beseeching Him to frustrate the plans of the enemy and to lead Israel into its fullness of destiny.

But it's not just about praying for Israel's peace. We are called to pray for her protection from the physical and spiritual forces that seek to destroy her. The Bible speaks of God being Israel's shield and protector in times of trouble. *Psalm 121:4* reminds us:

"Behold, He who keeps Israel Shall neither slumber nor sleep."

God never slumbers in His commitment to Israel, and as His people, we must stand in the gap, joining in prayer to ask for His continued protection and providence.

Our prayers are not limited to asking for physical safety. We are also called to intercede for Israel's spiritual restoration—praying for the hearts of the Jewish people to be open to the Messiah. *Romans* 11:26 says,

"And so all Israel will be saved, as it is written:

"The Deliverer will come out of Zion, And He will turn away ungodliness from Jacob:"

This is God's promise for the future of Israel. But it requires our earnest intercession to pave the way for that great day of salvation.

# Standing in the Gap

As Christians, we are not bystanders in this battle; we are called to stand in the gap for Israel. Just as the prophets of old interceded for their people, we are called to intercede for the peace and restoration of Israel. *Ezekiel 22:30* gives us a clear picture of this role:

"So I sought for a man among them who would make a wall, and stand in the gap before Me on behalf of the land, that I should not destroy it; but I found no one."

God is looking for those who will stand in the gap, those who will actively fight for Israel's future.

To stand in the gap is to be an advocate before God on Israel's behalf, pleading for mercy and for the fulfillment of God's promises. It is more than just offering prayers; it is about aligning our hearts with God's heart for His people. We are called to engage in spiritual warfare on behalf of Israel, knowing that our intercession has the power to bring about real change.

*Zechariah 12:10* provides the hope that one day Israel will be spiritually awakened:

"And I will pour on the house of David and on the inhabitants of Jerusalem the Spirit of grace and supplication; then they will look on Me whom they pierced. Yes, they will mourn for Him as one mourns for his only son, and grieve for Him as one grieves for a firstborn."

Christians, standing in the gap through prayer, help usher in the day of Israel's repentance and restoration, when they will see the truth of Jesus as their Messiah.

Engaging in spiritual warfare for Israel requires action and intentionality. Here are practical steps that every believer can take to fight on Israel's behalf in the spiritual realm:

- Pray for Israel's Peace: Begin each day by lifting Israel before the throne of God. Pray for peace in Jerusalem, protection from external and internal threats, and for God's divine intervention in the nation's affairs. Use scripture such as Psalm 122:6—"Pray for the peace of Jerusalem: May they prosper who love you."
- 2. **Intercede for Israel's Spiritual Restoration**: Pray for the Jewish people to recognize Jesus as the Messiah. Stand in the gap, asking God to soften their hearts and open their eyes to the truth of the gospel. Use passages like *Romans* 11:25-26 to declare God's promise for Israel's salvation:

"For I do not desire, brethren, that you should be ignorant of this mystery, lest you should be wise in your own opinion, that blindness in part has happened to Israel until the fullness of the Gentiles has come in. And so all Israel will be saved, as it is written: 'The Deliverer will come out of Zion, and He will turn away ungodliness from Jacob;'"

3. **Pray for Protection Against the Enemy's Plans**: The enemy is actively trying to destroy Israel through terrorism, false ideologies, and global political pressure. Pray that God would frustrate the plans of the enemy and expose the works of darkness. Declare God's promises of protection from *Psalm 91:11*:

"For He shall give His angels charge over you, To keep you in all your ways."

4. **Support Israel's Right to the Land**: Stand publicly in support of Israel's right to exist as a nation and its right to its God-given land. Advocate for Israel on social media, in your church, and in conversations with others. As Christians, it is important to boldly proclaim the truth that Israel is God's chosen nation, and His promises to her are irrevocable.

The spiritual battle for Israel is urgent and real. The enemy is relentless, but God is sovereign. As Christians, we must engage in spiritual warfare, standing firm in our faith and interceding on behalf of Israel. Psalm 132:13 declares:

"For the Lord has chosen Zion; He has desired it for His [a]dwelling place:" By standing in the gap for Israel, we become active participants in His greater plan, confident that He will bring to completion His promises to His chosen people.

But standing in the gap is not only about what we do for Israel—it's about who we become in the process.

When we engage in spiritual warfare on behalf of Israel, God transforms us into watchmen—those who remain alert, discerning the signs of the times and crying out on behalf of God's people. Isaiah 62:6-7 says, "I have set watchmen on your walls, O Jerusalem; they shall never hold their peace day or night... and give Him no rest till He establishes and till He makes Jerusalem a praise in the earth." This is a divine invitation to be relentless in prayer and bold in declaration, never ceasing to remind God of His promises, not because He forgets—but because He calls us to partner with Him in seeing them fulfilled.

The spiritual battle for Israel sharpens our vision, tests our loyalty, and deepens our dependence on the Lord. It reminds us that prophecy is not passive prediction—it is a call to action. In choosing to stand with Israel, we are not just defending a nation—we are aligning ourselves with the unshakable purposes of God in human history. As the

final chapter of redemption draws near, may we be found faithful: praying, proclaiming, and pressing forward until Zion is restored, Messiah returns, and the earth is filled with the glory of the Lord.

# Chapter 10: Israel's Future

## **God's Promise of Restoration**

Israel's future, as depicted in Jeremiah 31:1-12, is one of hope and restoration. Despite centuries of rebellion, exile, and suffering, God promises that Israel will experience a complete restoration, not only physically but spiritually as well. The prophet Jeremiah, speaking on God's behalf, declared in verse 3:

"Yes, I have loved you with an everlasting love; Therefore with lovingkindness I have drawn you."

This statement isn't just an affirmation of God's love but a declaration of His unwavering commitment to His people, even when they have wandered far from Him.

Israel's exile was a painful consequence of sin, but it was never meant to be permanent. God's purpose for Israel was always redemption and restoration. Jeremiah 31:4 states,

"Again I will build you, and you shall be rebuilt, O virgin of Israel! You shall again be adorned with your tambourines, And shall go forth in the dances of those who rejoice."

This promise of restoration signifies a future where Israel is not only returned to the land but also revived spiritually. The brokenness of Israel would be healed, and joy would replace sorrow as they return to their rightful place under God's blessings.

The significance of this restoration is not just for the Jewish people, but it holds a profound theological importance for all of humanity. It is through Israel's restoration that God's glory will be revealed to the nations. Jeremiah 31:12 speaks to the abundant blessings Israel will receive upon their return:

"Therefore they shall come and sing in the height of Zion, Streaming to the goodness of the Lord—For wheat and new wine and oil, For the young of the flock and the herd; Their souls shall be like a well-watered garden, And they shall sorrow no more at all."

Israel will once again experience prosperity, peace, and divine favor, all of which will reflect God's faithfulness to His covenant promises. This future blessing is integral to the coming of God's kingdom on earth, and it is foundational to the faith of Christians today.

#### The New Covenant with Israel

Jeremiah 31:31-34 reveals God's promise of a new covenant, a covenant unlike the old one made at Mount Sinai. This new covenant would address the shortcomings of the previous one, which Israel was unable to keep because of their sinful nature. God says in verse 31:

"Behold, the days are coming, says the Lord, when I will make a new covenant with the house of Israel and with the house of Judah"

This promise is not just a restoration of Israel's temporal blessings; it is a promise of a spiritual renewal that will bring about lasting transformation in the hearts of God's people.

The new covenant, which was fulfilled in the person of Jesus Christ, would enable Israel to experience an internal change that the law could never accomplish. In verse 33, God declares:

"But this shall be the covenant that I will make with the house of Israel; After those days, saith the LORD, I will put my law in their inward parts, and write it in their hearts; and will be their God, and they shall be my people."

This is a promise of spiritual regeneration. No longer would the law be external, written on tablets of stone; it would now be engraved on the hearts of God's people. This inward transformation would enable Israel to follow God faithfully, not by mere outward compliance but through a heart transformed by His grace.

Jesus Himself affirmed this new covenant in His last supper with His disciples, when He said,

"This cup is the new testament in my blood, which is shed for you" (Luke 22:20)

Through His sacrifice on the cross, Jesus made this covenant available, not just for Israel but for the Gentiles as well. As Christians, we are the beneficiaries of this new covenant, and it's through our participation in it that we experience the forgiveness of sins and the indwelling of the Holy Spirit. But God's promises to Israel regarding the new covenant are not fully realized until Israel's national repentance and spiritual awakening in the last days.

# The Future of Israel in Prophecy

Israel plays the most central role in the eschatological timeline, the unfolding plan of God for the last days. Throughout the Scriptures, from the Old Testament to the New, Israel's future is intricately woven into the fabric of God's redemptive plan for the world. The promise of Israel's restoration is directly connected to the return of the Messiah, Jesus Christ, who will establish His kingdom on earth.

The prophet Zechariah foretells that one day, the Jewish people will recognize Jesus as their Messiah and call upon Him to return. Zechariah 12:10 states:

"And I will pour on the house of David and on the inhabitants of Jerusalem the Spirit of grace and supplication; then they will look on Me whom they pierced. Yes, they will mourn for Him as one mourns for his only son, and grieve for Him as one grieves for a firstborn."

This future moment of national repentance will be followed by the glorious return of Jesus to Jerusalem, where He will reign as King.

Jeremiah 31:10-11 speaks of this future gathering of the Jewish people from the four corners of the earth, a fulfillment of God's promises to restore His people to the land:

"Hear the word of the Lord, O nations, And declare it in the [a]isles afar off, and say, 'He who scattered Israel will gather him, And keep him as a shepherd does his flock.' For the Lord has redeemed Jacob, And ransomed him from the hand of one stronger than he."

This restoration will not be a mere return to a geographic location but a return to a relationship with God—a relationship that was broken but will be fully restored in the last days.

In the end, Israel's restoration is closely linked to the second coming of Christ and the establishment of God's kingdom. The Apostle Paul, in Romans 11:25-26, writes:

"For I do not desire, brethren, that you should be ignorant of this mystery, lest you should be wise in your own [a]opinion, that blindness in part has happened to Israel until the fullness of the Gentiles has come in. And so all Israel will be saved, as it is written: "The Deliverer will come out of Zion, And He will turn away ungodliness from Jacob"

This is a powerful promise that Israel, once blinded to the truth of the Messiah, will one day be spiritually awakened, and the fullness of God's kingdom will come.

# Why Israel's Future Impacts the Church Today

Israel's future is not merely a theological curiosity or a distant event in the timeline of history—it has direct implications for the Church today. As believers in Christ, we are part of the larger story that God is unfolding, a story that centers on His promises to Israel. His plan for Israel's restoration is essential for the fulfillment of His promises to all nations.

The restoration of Israel serves as a reminder of God's faithfulness and the reliability of His promises. It is through Israel's future restoration that the world will witness God's ultimate victory over sin and death. The Church, as the body of Christ, has a responsibility to stand with Israel in prayer, intercession, and advocacy, supporting her return to God and the land He has promised her.

Furthermore, Israel's future directly impacts the Church's understanding of prophecy and the end times. As we look to the fulfillment of biblical prophecy, it is important to recognize that Israel's role is not an afterthought but a central part of

God's redemptive plan. The return of the Messiah, the fulfillment of the promises of the new covenant, and the establishment of God's kingdom all hinge upon Israel's role in the last days.

Israel's future is not just about a nation returning to its land; it is about God fulfilling His eternal purposes through His chosen people. As Christians, we would do well to recognize the significance of Israel's future for the Church today. We are instructed to pray for Israel's restoration, support her in her spiritual journey, and eagerly await the day when Christ returns to reign from Jerusalem, fulfilling all that God has promised to His people.

Yet as we wait for that glorious fulfillment, there is much the Church must discern and do in this prophetic moment.

The unfolding of Israel's future is not just about watching prophecy come to pass—it's about participating in God's unfolding plan. The Church is not a passive observer; we are called to be active participants in God's redemptive agenda for the world, which hinges upon His dealings with Israel. As the world grows increasingly hostile to truth and to Israel, Christians must rise with discernment, boldly proclaiming the Word of God and resisting every narrative that seeks to erase or distort God's covenant with His people. The restoration of Israel is not only about the Jewish people returning to the land; it is about the world being prepared for the return of the King.

This is why Israel's future matters now more than ever. It reminds us that history is not spiraling out of control—it is moving precisely according to God's prophetic timetable. Each step toward Israel's full restoration is a step closer to the return of Jesus, the redemption of the earth, and the reign of righteousness. As believers, this should awaken our hearts, ignite our prayers, and sharpen our witness. Israel's future is our future—because the story ends with a kingdom, a King, and a throne in Jerusalem where justice, peace, and truth will reign forever.

## **Chapter 11: The Messianic Hope of Israel**

In today's world, it's easy to feel like the promises of God are distant, irrelevant, or simply forgotten. But let me be clear: God's promises to Israel are as certain as the rising sun, and they are unfolding right before our eyes. The Messiah—Jesus Christ—has already come to begin the fulfillment of those promises, and His second coming is coming fast to bring them to completion. This isn't just some distant, abstract theological concept. This is reality. The restoration of Israel and the world hinges on the return of Jesus Christ. And we need to understand what that means for us, for Israel, and for the future of the world.

If you're a Christian today, you cannot afford to ignore the significance of what is happening with Israel. If you think that the promises of God to Israel are somehow separate from the promises to you as a believer, you're missing the entire point of the Gospel. The Bible makes it clear: Jesus is coming back to finish what He started, and when He does, He will bring Israel into the fullness of His kingdom. But that isn't just a nice promise for Israel—it's the ultimate hope for all believers. Let's dive into the undeniable truth of Israel's restoration and the role of the Messiah in that process, because the stakes are incredibly high.

#### The Messiah's Role in Israel's Restoration

Please understand this: Jesus came to restore Israel, but His work is not finished. His first coming fulfilled many promises, yes, but His second coming is where the ultimate restoration of Israel will be realized. This isn't just about a physical land, and it is not about political power; this is about spiritual renewal and eternal salvation. The question is: are you prepared for the completion of God's plan?

Israel's hope for restoration has always been wrapped up in the coming of the Messiah. The prophets were clear about this. Isaiah, Ezekiel, and others spoke about a coming Redeemer who would bring peace and justice to Israel. Jesus' first coming was the beginning of the fulfillment of those prophecies, but let's make one thing clear: the full restoration of Israel is not yet realized. It's easy to see Israel as just another nation in the world today, but that is a massive mistake. Israel's future is wrapped up in Christ's second coming.

## The First Coming: Fulfillment of Prophecies

Jesus Christ's first coming to earth wasn't just some event in history. It was God's answer to Israel's long-awaited hope. Jesus fulfilled prophecy after prophecy, proving that He was the Messiah. Yet, He didn't fulfill every promise in full. His mission at that time wasn't to bring political power or military victory to Israel but to save souls. Isaiah said:

"Surely He has borne our griefs and carried our sorrows; Yet we esteemed Him stricken, Smitten by God, and afflicted. But He was wounded for our transgressions, He was bruised for our iniquities; The chastisement for our peace was upon Him, And by His stripes we are healed." Isaiah 53:4-5

Jesus came as the suffering servant to take away the sins of the world. He laid down His life to fulfill the promises of forgiveness and reconciliation. The New Covenant began with His blood, and Israel's spiritual restoration began at the Cross.

However, we cannot ignore that Israel, as a nation, rejected Him. Even though some individuals accepted Jesus as the Messiah, the majority of the nation did not. This rejection meant that the full restoration of Israel would be postponed. This is not the end of the story, however. God's promises are not nullified by Israel's rejection of Christ. In fact, it is precisely in this rejection that God has allowed the world—especially the Gentile nations—to be grafted into His plan of salvation, just as Romans chapter 11 explains.

# The Second Coming: Completion of Restoration

But listen to this closely: what Jesus began, He will finish. The first coming was just the start. His second coming will be the event that completely restores Israel. There's no middle ground here. Either Jesus returns and fulfills His promises, or He doesn't—and everything we believe as Christians falls apart.

The restoration of Israel isn't some optional add-on to God's plan—it is central to what God is doing in the world. The Bible speaks clearly about Israel's future, especially in passages like Ezekiel 37, where God promises to breathe life into the dry bones of Israel. It's not a matter of if Israel will be restored, but when:

"Thus says the Lord GOD: 'Behold, O My people, I will open your graves and cause you to come up from your graves, and bring you into the land of Israel." Ezekiel 37:12

This is not a metaphor; this is a literal prophecy. Israel will be restored, both spiritually and physically, at the return of Christ. And this isn't just for Israel's benefit—it's for the benefit of the entire world. When Jesus returns, He will set up His kingdom and reign from Jerusalem. This isn't a vague idea; it's the reality that every Christian needs to get ready for. Israel's restoration is coming.

What does this mean for us? If God will restore Israel, that means we can trust Him to fulfill His promises to us as well. The promises of God to Israel are a guarantee of His faithfulness to us. If He has been faithful to Israel, He will be faithful to His Church, and He will return for us as He promised. Our confidence is in the God who keeps His Word, and the restoration of Israel is the proof that He will finish what He started.

### The New Covenant and Israel

Now, don't miss this: the New Covenant is the key to understanding Israel's future. This covenant, which Jesus inaugurated through His death and resurrection, is the guarantee of Israel's restoration. But we must be clear about something: the New Covenant doesn't just apply to Israel—it applies to all who believe in Jesus Christ. This is the hope that we cling to as Christians.

The Old Covenant, with its sacrifices and rituals, was always meant to point to the New Covenant that would come through Jesus. The moment Jesus died on the cross, the New Covenant was established. Israel may have rejected Him for now, but that doesn't mean the promises of the New Covenant are void. In fact, the opposite is true. The New Covenant isn't finished until Israel embraces the Messiah.

Again we think of how Jeremiah prophesied about the New Covenant:

"Behold, the days are coming, says the LORD, when I will make a new covenant with the house of Israel and with the house of Judah... I will put My law in their minds, and write it on their hearts; and I will be their God, and they shall be My people." Jeremiah 31:31, 33

This is exactly what is happening today for all who believe in Christ, but it will come to its ultimate fulfillment when Israel, as a nation, recognizes Jesus as their Savior. Don't be deceived into thinking that God has abandoned His people—He hasn't. The time is coming when He will pour out His Spirit on Israel, and the nation will turn to Jesus.

How can we apply this to our lives today? It is imperative to recognize that God's promises to Israel extend to us as believers. The same covenant that brings forgiveness and spiritual renewal to Israel is the covenant that brings us salvation. This should stir in us an urgency to live in the hope of God's promises being fulfilled. We are part of the

same family, and Israel's restoration should ignite in us a deeper passion to live out the Gospel and share the message of Christ with a world that desperately needs it.

# A Kingdom Restored – Israel's Role in the Millennial Kingdom

Let's cut to the chase: Israel will play a central role in the millennial kingdom. This isn't optional, it's God's plan. Jesus will return and establish His throne in Jerusalem, and Israel will be the leading nation under His reign. The nations will come to Israel to worship the King:

"It shall come to pass in the latter days that the mountain of the LORD's house shall be established on the top of the mountains, and shall be exalted above the hills; and all nations shall flow to it." Isaiah 2:2

This is the reality that every Christian should be living in light of. The kingdom of God is coming, and Israel is central to it. If you don't understand this, you're missing the entire point of the Bible's narrative. This isn't a side story—this is the central plot of God's redemptive plan.

As we look at the world today—its corruption, the rise of evil, the increasing rejection of Christian values—we must remember that the King is coming. Israel will not remain in a state of rejection and suffering forever. The Messiah will return to rule with righteousness, and Israel will be the nation from which His rule will spread to the entire earth.

Here's the bottom line: God will do exactly what He said He would do. The promises to Israel will be fulfilled in their entirety. This is the hope we hold onto. If you're a Christian today, you need to recognize that the return of Christ isn't some distant, abstract event—it's the climax of history, and it's coming soon.

As the world grows darker, as the culture becomes more hostile to Judeo-Christian values, the only thing that will stand is the unshakable promises of God. The restoration of Israel, the fulfillment of the New Covenant, and the coming Kingdom of God are the promises that will give us hope in the midst of an increasingly confused and broken world.

Don't let the world steal your hope. Get grounded in the Word of God, and cling to the promises that are sure. The Messiah will return, and everything will be made right. You can rest in that reality, knowing that God's Word is true and that His promises are certain.

But this hope isn't meant to make us comfortable—it's meant to move us into action.

If we believe that Jesus is coming soon and that Israel's restoration is at hand, then we must live like it. Now is not the time for apathy or distraction. Now is the time for boldness, holiness, and proclamation. The same God who keeps His promises to Israel is calling His Church to rise in this prophetic hour—to stand for truth, to preach the Gospel, and to prepare the way for the coming King. Our alignment with God's heart for Israel isn't just theological—it's missional. It shapes how we pray, how we preach, how we live, and how we hope.

As we watch prophecy being fulfilled before our eyes, we must ask: are we ready? Are we sounding the alarm? Are we pointing people to the Messiah who is soon to return? Israel's restoration is a sign that time is short and that the world's Redeemer is about to step back into history. That is not just good news—it is the best news. Let it drive us to urgency, to intercession, and to unwavering hope. The Messiah came once. He is coming again. And this time, every eye will see Him, and every knee will bow—beginning in Jerusalem.

## **Chapter 12: Israel and the Nations**

The time has come for Christians to understand the full scope of God's purpose for Israel. Israel is not a mere historical or political entity—it is central to God's redemptive plan for the world. God's calling on Israel extends beyond her borders, reaching all nations. Israel's mission to be a light to the nations is not just a distant ideal—it is God's ordained reality, and it is crucial for the world's future.

At the same time, the Bible teaches that the nations have a profound responsibility when it comes to Israel. How we, as the nations, engage with Israel will determine not only our relationship with God but also the blessings or curses that follow. We must recognize that God has a plan for Israel that impacts every nation, and how we respond to that plan will have eternal significance.

In this chapter, we will examine Israel's mission to the world, the nations' role in Israel's restoration, and how blessing Israel translates into blessings for the Church and for the world. The stakes could not be higher. Christians should understand that our interaction with Israel is not optional; it is essential.

#### Israel's Mission to the World

From the very beginning, God's purpose for Israel was to be a light to the nations. Israel was not meant to exist for its own sake, nor was it chosen merely for its own benefit. Israel's mission was always about bringing the nations to the knowledge of the true God. The prophet Isaiah declared:

"I will also give You as a light to the Gentiles, that You should be My salvation to the ends of the earth." Isaiah 49:6

Israel's role as a light to the nations was God's divine calling for her. But this calling wasn't fulfilled through political power or military conquest—it was fulfilled through a spiritual witness. Israel's laws, her worship of the one true God, and her history—all pointed to something far greater than her own existence. They pointed to the Messiah, who would bring salvation to the world.

The ultimate fulfillment of this mission came through Jesus Christ, who, though born in Israel, became the Savior of all nations. Jesus, the Jewish Messiah, is the fulfillment of God's promise to Israel to be a light to the world. Jesus Himself said:

"I am the light of the world. He who follows Me shall not walk in darkness, but have the light of life." John 8:12 Through Jesus, Israel's mission was not only preserved but magnified. It was through Israel's rejection of Jesus that the gospel was brought to the Gentiles, fulfilling God's promise to make Israel a light to all the nations.

But here's the truth we must understand today: Israel's mission is not over. While Jesus came to offer salvation to the world, Israel still plays a pivotal role in the fulfillment of God's plan. In the last days, Israel will be restored spiritually, and she will take center stage once again as a witness to the nations.

What does this mean for us today? As Christians, we are called to honor and support Israel in her mission. Israel's calling has not ended, and neither has our responsibility to support her in fulfilling that calling. When we understand Israel's mission to the world, we see the greater picture—God has always had a plan to reach the nations, and Israel is at the heart of that plan.

#### The Nations' Role in Israel's Restoration

The Bible makes it clear: in the last days, Israel will be restored, both physically and spiritually. But the nations have a crucial role to play in this restoration. The restoration of Israel is not a solo mission—it involves a global shift in how nations relate to Israel.

Let's be clear: the nations of the world cannot remain neutral in their relationship with Israel. God has a definitive plan for how the nations must interact with Israel in these last days, and it has eternal implications. Throughout Scripture, God warns that how a nation treats Israel will directly affect that nation's future.

The prophet Zechariah declared:

"And it shall happen in that day that I will seek to destroy all the nations that come against Jerusalem." Zechariah 12:9

This passage should serve as a sobering reminder to the nations of the world. Those who oppose Israel—whether in word or deed—will ultimately face the judgment of God. The nations will be held accountable for how they treat God's chosen people, and that judgment will come when Jesus returns to set up His Kingdom.

However, the opposite is also true. Nations that bless Israel will experience God's blessing. God promises that those who stand with Israel will be rewarded:

"I will bless those who bless you, And I will curse him who curses you; And in you all the families of the earth shall be blessed." Genesis 12:3

This promise extends to all nations, not just Israel. As Christians, it is important to recognize that our blessing as a Church is intricately tied to how we engage with Israel. Supporting Israel is not merely a matter of political interest or social activism—it is a

spiritual obligation. The nations of the world have been given the opportunity to align with God's eternal plan by standing with Israel.

But here's where the urgency comes in: the time to act is now. The nations must recognize their responsibility to Israel before it's too late. The Bible warns that in the final days, nations will be judged based on their treatment of Israel. In Matthew 25, when Jesus separates the sheep from the goats, He says:

"Come, you blessed of My Father, inherit the kingdom prepared for you from the foundation of the world... inasmuch as you did it to one of the least of these My brethren, you did it to Me." Matthew 25:34, 40

While this passage is often interpreted in a broader sense, it's important to recognize that Israel is a key part of God's family. Jesus identified Himself with His people, His brethren, the Jews.

In Genesis 12:3, God's promise to bless those who bless Israel is unconditional. Those who stand with Israel will experience God's favor in ways that transcend political or economic outcomes. Supporting Israel invites God's blessings into our lives, our churches, and our nations. When the Church recognizes this truth, the global impact of standing with Israel becomes evident.

Supporting Israel benefits the Church because, as Gentile believers, we are grafted into the promises God made to Israel. Romans 11 makes it clear that we, as the Church, have been brought into the covenant through faith in Jesus Christ, the Jewish Messiah. When we bless Israel, we acknowledge the roots of our faith and show our gratitude for the salvation that has come through her.

Supporting Israel also benefits the world at large. When Israel is blessed, she will once again fulfill her mission as a light to the nations. As God fulfills His promises to Israel, the world will witness the power of the gospel in a way that we have not yet seen. The Church is called to stand alongside Israel in these last days because the ultimate blessing that will flow from Israel will be the establishment of God's Kingdom on earth.

But standing with Israel means more than agreement—it means spiritual discernment and prophetic alignment in a rapidly shifting world.

As global alliances shift and hostility toward Israel increases, it's critical that Christians understand this is not merely political—it is prophetic. Behind every diplomatic decision and media narrative lies a spiritual battlefield. Satan knows that Israel's restoration and the return of Jesus are linked, and he works tirelessly to turn the nations against her. The Church must therefore rise above cultural confusion and discern the times with clarity. Supporting Israel is not about nationalism—it's about aligning with God's eternal covenant and resisting the deception that seeks to obscure it.

This is the hour for spiritual courage. Neutrality is no longer an option. As darkness increases, so too must the light of truth. Believers must educate, intercede, and act—not only for Israel's sake, but for the sake of the nations. As Israel walks toward her prophetic destiny, the Church has been given the honor of walking with her—not in pride, but in humility and conviction. The fulfillment of God's promise to bless all nations through Israel is not just a past reality—it is a present responsibility and a future hope.

# Chapter 13: The Church's Role in Supporting Israel

The world is changing at an alarming pace, and the challenges facing Israel today are mounting. The nation stands at a critical crossroads—politically, spiritually, and socially. As Christians, we can no longer sit idly by. It is time for the Church to stand firm, unashamed, and unwavering in its support for Israel.

As I previously mentioned, the future of Israel is tied to the fulfillment of God's promises, and those promises will ultimately bring hope not only to Israel but to all of humanity.

Our love for Israel is not based on the nation's political landscape or current leadership. It's based on the fact that Israel is God's chosen people, and God has an unbreakable covenant with them. To love Israel is to love God's promises and to align ourselves with His eternal plan. Again, it's about understanding that Israel's future is intimately tied to the return of the Messiah and the fulfillment of all prophetic Scripture.

## **Practical Ways to Support Israel**

Supporting Israel goes beyond just prayers and sentiments—it requires action. There are tangible ways that the Church can show its support for Israel—politically, socially, and spiritually. This is an urgent call to engage in ways that will make an impact, both in your personal life and in the broader community.

- **Political Support:** What do I mean by political support? To be clear, this isn't about endorsing every decision made by the Israeli government. I do not agree with everything they do, just as I don't agree with everything any country has done or is doing, even my own country. But this is it's about standing for the right of Israel to exist, to defend herself, and to thrive, advocating for policies that recognize Israel's sovereignty, protect her right to self-defense, and promote peace in the region.
- **Social Support:** In your local community, you can actively support Israel by educating others about the nation's history, the challenges it faces, and its central role in God's plan. Knowledge is power—and too often, Israel's story is distorted or misunderstood.

You can also support Jewish organizations, attend rallies, and make your voice heard when Israel is unfairly criticized. Israel is often vilified in the media and on university campuses, and Christians should be at the forefront of standing for justice and truth in these spaces.

• **Spiritual Support:** There is an even greater and more powerful way to stand with Israel—through intercessory prayer.

In the gospel of Luke, Jesus wept over Jerusalem because the nation had not recognized Him as their Messiah. The cry for Israel's spiritual awakening is one we ought to echo in our prayers today. Israel's ultimate restoration—spiritually and physically—will come when the nation calls upon the name of the Lord. It is our responsibility to intercede for the peace of Israel, for the salvation of her people, and for the fulfillment of God's promises to her.

# **Intercessory Prayer for Israel**

Why is prayer for Israel so crucial? First and foremost, because God commands us to pray for the peace of Jerusalem (Psalm 122:6). But beyond that, prayer is a declaration of dependence on God's power to accomplish what only He can. Israel's future rests entirely in God's hands, and we are called to partner with Him through intercessory prayer.

As Christians, our prayers for Israel should include:

• **Prayers for spiritual awakening**: Israel is still blinded to the truth of Jesus as the Messiah. Paul reminds us:

"Brethren, my heart's desire and prayer to God for Israel is that they may be saved." Romans 10:1

Praying for the salvation of Israel should be one of our greatest burdens. We pray for the day when Israel will recognize Jesus as their Savior and experience the fullness of God's promises.

- Prayers for peace: Israel faces constant threats of violence, terrorism, and
  military conflict. But as Christians, we know that true peace comes only from
  God. It is crucial our prayers for Israel to include intercession for peace—both the
  peace that surpasses all understanding and the peace of protection and security
  for the nation.
- Prayers for wisdom and discernment for leaders: Israel's leaders face complex and difficult decisions daily. Our prayers should ask for divine wisdom, guidance, and protection for Israel's leaders as they navigate the challenges of the world.

Now, let's get practical. How can you, as an individual believer, actively support Israel in your local church, community, and personal life?

- 1. **Educate yourself and others:** Commit to learning about the history of Israel, the challenges it faces, and its biblical significance. Share this knowledge with others. Bring the subject of Israel into conversations and encourage others to support Israel. You could even host Bible studies or community events focused on Israel's importance in God's plan.
- 2. **Pray for Israel regularly:** Set aside time each day to pray for Israel. Use Psalm 122:6 as a guide. Pray for the peace of Jerusalem, for the spiritual awakening of the Jewish people, and for wisdom for Israel's leaders. If you belong to a church, consider organizing regular prayer meetings specifically for Israel. Prayer is powerful, and your intercession will make an eternal impact.

## 3. Stand firm in the face of opposition:

Israel faces criticism, both from outside and within the Church. When others criticize Israel, speak up for her. Defend her right to exist and thrive. This is not a time to be silent.

This calling will demand courage, clarity, and an unshakable commitment to truth—even when it costs us.

We are entering a time when supporting Israel may no longer be popular—or even safe. As pressure mounts from media, academia, and global institutions to distance from Israel, the Church must resist the urge to appease the culture. This is not the moment to shrink back. To support Israel is to stand with God's covenant, and to do so may increasingly bring opposition. But obedience to God has always come with a cost. The early Church endured persecution for preaching a Jewish Messiah. In the same spirit, we must be willing to endure ridicule or rejection for defending the people and promises God has not abandoned.

Furthermore, our support for Israel is not limited to this generation—it is a legacy we are called to pass on. We must raise up the next generation of believers who understand the prophetic significance of Israel, who will not be swayed by revisionist theology or political pressure, and who will boldly carry the torch of truth into a darkening world. When we teach our children and disciple others in this calling, we are not just defending Israel's future—we are securing the Church's prophetic integrity. In standing for Israel, we stand for the truth of God's Word from Genesis to Revelation.

# Chapter 14: Israel in the End-Times: Prophetic Fulfillment

As we approach the culmination of history, we find that Israel stands at the epicenter of God's prophetic plan. The Scriptures reveal that the end times will not only involve the Church but will also center around the nation of Israel. The Book of Revelation, Zechariah, and other prophetic texts make it clear that Israel's role in the end times is both pivotal and unavoidable. The promises of God, made long ago to the patriarchs, are coming to their ultimate fulfillment. We are living in days where prophecy is unfolding, and the Church ought to be prepared, not just to witness these events, but to understand and engage in them.

This chapter will explore the significant role that Israel plays in the end-times narrative, focusing on key prophecies concerning Israel's position in the Book of Revelation, the Battle for Jerusalem, and the coming Kingdom of God. As we delve into these prophetic realities, we will also reflect on how Christians should respond and prepare for the fulfillment of God's promises to Israel.

#### Israel in Revelation

The Book of Revelation, often seen as a cryptic and mysterious prophecy, is one of the most significant texts in understanding Israel's role in the end times. While much of Revelation is dedicated to the judgment and the triumph of Christ, Israel is at the very heart of the narrative. Revelation speaks of Israel in both spiritual and physical terms, and its role is critical in God's plan for the final restoration of all things.

One of the clearest ways Israel is highlighted in Revelation is through the imagery of the 144,000—12,000 from each of the 12 tribes of Israel. These 144,000 are set apart as a special group of Jewish believers who will play an essential role in the events leading up to the second coming of Christ:

"And I heard the number of those who were sealed. One hundred and forty-four thousand of all the tribes of the children of Israel were sealed." Revelation 7:4

This sealing of the 144,000 from Israel marks the beginning of the final restoration of God's people. These individuals will not only be preserved through the great tribulation but will also act as witnesses to the nations. Their presence serves as a reminder that God's covenant with Israel is unbreakable, and His promises to her will be fulfilled.

As we move deeper into Revelation, Israel's central role becomes even clearer. Revelation 12 depicts a woman—who is commonly understood to represent Israel—being pursued by the dragon, symbolizing Satan's attack on God's people. Despite

Satan's efforts, God protects Israel, demonstrating that despite all trials and tribulations, Israel is destined for ultimate victory.

"And a great sign appeared in heaven: a woman clothed with the sun, with the moon under her feet, and on her head a garland of twelve stars. Then being with child, she cried out in labor and in pain to give birth." Revelation 12:1-2

Israel's future is not one of defeat, but of ultimate victory, as she will be the instrument through which the Messiah will return to set up His eternal Kingdom. God's unbroken covenant with Israel provides the foundation for His entire end-time plan, and Israel's prominence in Revelation signifies that the final fulfillment of prophecy will center on the Jewish people.

### The Battle for Jerusalem

Jerusalem has been the focal point of countless historical and spiritual conflicts throughout history, but the Bible makes it clear that the Battle for Jerusalem will reach its climax in the last days. In Zechariah 14:2-4, we see the nations gathered against Jerusalem:

"For I will gather all the nations to battle against Jerusalem; the city shall be taken, the houses rifled, and the women ravished. Half of the city shall go into captivity, but the remnant of the people shall not be cut off from the city. Then the Lord will go forth and fight against those nations, as He fights in the day of battle. And in that day His feet will stand on the Mount of Olives, which faces Jerusalem on the east." Zechariah 14:2-4

This passage sets the stage for one of the most intense and climactic moments in human history. The nations of the world will turn against Jerusalem, and the city will experience great devastation. This is the final rebellion against God's plan, and the nations, under the influence of the enemy, will attempt to extinguish Israel and claim Jerusalem as their own. Yet, in this darkest moment, God Himself will intervene.

The key to understanding this battle is recognizing that Jerusalem is not just a city—it is the spiritual and prophetic heart of God's plan for the world. The nations' assault on Jerusalem is the culmination of centuries of conflict, but it is also the moment when God will definitively step in to defend His city and His people. In this moment, the Lord will fight on behalf of Israel. This is not a battle Israel can win by its own might, but one that will be won by the intervention of God Himself.

The victory of God over the nations will not only signal the defeat of evil, but it will also set the stage for the final phase of Israel's restoration. Christ's return to Jerusalem will

be the turning point, signaling the end of the enemy's reign and the establishment of God's eternal Kingdom.

# **The Coming Kingdom**

The return of Christ to Jerusalem is the focal point of God's redemptive plan. The battle will culminate in the physical return of Jesus, as He sets foot on the Mount of Olives, fulfilling the prophecies of the Old Testament. The significance of this moment cannot be overstated: it is the ultimate fulfillment of God's promises to Israel and to the world.

"And in that day His feet will stand on the Mount of Olives, which faces Jerusalem on the east; and the Mount of Olives shall be split in two, from east to west, making a very large valley; half of the mountain shall move toward the north and half of it toward the south." Zechariah 14:4

This is the moment Israel has long awaited—the moment when the Messiah returns to establish His Kingdom, to restore Israel, and to bring peace to the world. The physical return of Jesus to Jerusalem signals the fulfillment of God's covenant promises to His people. It is in this moment that Israel will fully realize her redemption, and the nations will finally come under the rule of Christ.

The coming Kingdom will not be a temporary reign. It will be eternal. Jesus will reign from Jerusalem, and Israel will be restored as the center of God's Kingdom on earth. Jerusalem will be the spiritual and political center of the world, and the nations will come to Jerusalem to worship the King:

"And it shall come to pass that everyone who is left of all the nations which came against Jerusalem shall go up from year to year to worship the King, the Lord of hosts, and to keep the Feast of Tabernacles." Zechariah 14:16

This final restoration of Israel will not only be a fulfillment of prophecy but will also bring a radical transformation to the world. The Kingdom of God will bring peace, justice, and righteousness. Israel, once again established in the land promised to her, will be a witness to the nations of the greatness of God's power and the truth of His Word.

But as we draw closer to the final fulfillment of these promises, the stakes for both Israel and the Church are rising rapidly.

The increasing global pressure on Israel is no coincidence—it is prophetic. Scripture clearly teaches that all nations will eventually come against Jerusalem, not simply due to politics or territory, but because of deep spiritual resistance to God's redemptive plan. Satan's final rebellion will focus on trying to destroy the very nation through which Christ will return and reign. This is why we see such irrational hostility toward Israel

today. It is not merely geopolitical; it is profoundly spiritual. To understand this conflict is to understand the heart of the battle between good and evil in the last days.

At the same time, the Church must not view prophecy as distant or detached. These events are unfolding in real-time, and they demand a faithful, discerning response. As we see Israel increasingly isolated, the call for the Church is clear: stand on the truth of God's Word, remain watchful, and resist the tides of deception sweeping across the nations. This is a time for spiritual maturity, prophetic awareness, and gospel urgency. Israel's end-time role is not the end of the story—it is the gateway to the reign of Christ, the restoration of creation, and the fulfillment of every promise God has made.

## **Chapter 15: Conclusion: Why Israel Still Matters**

As we conclude this study on the prophetic role of Israel, we are confronted with the undeniable truth: Israel still matters. The nation of Israel is not only a historical reality but also a central focus of God's redemptive plan for the world. From the promises made to Abraham to the fulfillment of those promises through Jesus Christ, Israel's place in God's plan is irreplaceable and unchanging. It is vital for the Church to understand this enduring truth and embrace its role in supporting and advocating for Israel in these final days.

# **God's Unchanging Promises to Israel**

The promises God made to Israel are not contingent upon time or circumstance—they are eternal and unbreakable. From the very beginning, God chose Israel as His special people, and He covenanted with them that He would bless them, protect them, and ultimately restore them. As we have noted several times, In *Genesis 12:3*, God declared to Abraham,

"I will bless those who bless you, and I will curse him who curses you; and in you all the families of the earth shall be blessed."

This promise is as true today as it was when it was first made.

What we see in Israel's history is a testament to God's faithfulness to His Word. Even in times of rebellion, exile, and hardship, God did not revoke His promises. The nation of Israel has endured through countless trials, and God's unchanging nature guarantees that His promises will come to fruition. This unwavering commitment was reaffirmed by the prophets, who foretold of Israel's eventual return to the land and spiritual renewal.

Israel's role in God's plan extends far beyond the Old Testament era. Through Israel, God revealed His will to the world, bringing forth the Scriptures, the law, and ultimately the Messiah, Jesus Christ. As Paul writes in *Romans 9:4-5*, Israel is the nation through which God gave His covenants, promises, and the very lineage of the Savior. Even though Israel has experienced trials, suffering, and rejection, God's covenant with Israel is irrevocable.

"For the gifts and the calling of God are irrevocable." (Romans 11:29)

These words emphasize that God's promises to Israel were never meant to be broken.

This unchanging promise means that Israel is still the apple of God's eye. Despite the challenges Israel has faced throughout history, from exile to persecution, God's Word remains true. His plan for Israel is not finished, and He will fulfill every promise He has made to the Jewish people. The restoration of Israel to the land is a sign of God's faithfulness and His future plan for the nation. Even as the world continues to change, God's promises to Israel stand firm, and He will bring them to fruition in the fullness of time.

The significance of Israel's survival, despite the horrors of war, persecution, and global opposition, is a powerful testimony to God's unbreakable covenant. The reestablishment of Israel in 1948 after nearly two thousand years of dispersion is not a random historical occurrence. It is, in fact, the fulfillment of God's promises to restore His people to their land, and it marks the beginning of a prophetic season in which Israel's role in the end times is steadily unfolding.

#### The Church's Role in God's Plan for Israel

The Church's relationship with Israel is one of both reverence and responsibility. We, the Gentiles, have been grafted into the promises of God through Israel. The Apostle Paul warns in *Romans* 11:18,

"Do not boast against the branches. But if you do boast, remember that you do not support the root, but the root supports you."

As Christians, we owe much to Israel, for it is through Israel that salvation came to the world through Jesus Christ.

The New Testament is clear that the gospel was first proclaimed to the Jews, and it was through their rejection that the message was extended to the Gentiles. As believers in Christ, we are heirs of the same promises that God made to Israel. *Ephesians 2:12-13* reminds us that, as Gentiles, we were once far off, but now, through Christ, we have been brought near. It is this near relationship with Israel and the promises made to them that compels us to love and support Israel as part of God's redemptive plan.

The Church is also tasked with sharing the gospel with the Jewish people. As we have seen, God's ultimate plan is for Israel's spiritual restoration, where the Jewish people will come to recognize Jesus as their Messiah. This spiritual renewal will be part of the fulfillment of prophecy in the last days. Christians are called to participate in this mission through evangelistic efforts, support of ministries that reach out to the Jewish people, and prayer for their salvation.

Furthermore, the Church should engage politically and socially in supporting Israel. In a world where Israel faces increasing opposition and hostility, the Church's advocacy on her behalf is crucial. The Bible makes it clear that God will judge the nations based on how they treat Israel in the last days (*Joel 3:2*). As believers, it is imperative to actively speak out against anti-Semitism and support Israel's right to exist as a sovereign nation in the land that God has promised her.

This is not only a call for advocacy but also a call for solidarity with the Jewish people during times of persecution. Whether in standing with Israel through global crises or by supporting Jewish communities facing anti-Semitism, the Church's advocacy must be rooted in the love and truth of the Gospel.

# **Moving Forward in Prayer and Action**

As we move forward, it is imperative that the Church take concrete steps to fulfill its responsibility toward Israel. This is not a time for passive observation; it is a time for active participation in God's redemptive plan.

But our support must also come with spiritual alertness and prophetic awareness, knowing that the days ahead will grow darker before the dawn.

The battle for Israel's future is intensifying—not just physically, but spiritually. As prophecy accelerates and global opposition mounts, the Church must be equipped to stand unwavering. We cannot afford to be distracted by lesser priorities or lulled into complacency. Israel's restoration is not an isolated event; it is a central marker on God's prophetic calendar. Every fulfilled promise regarding the land and the people points to the soon return of Jesus, and this should awaken urgency in our preaching, praying, and preparation. We are not spectators—we are watchmen.

Now is the time to embrace the fullness of our calling. This means confronting false theology that seeks to erase Israel, boldly proclaiming the truth of God's covenant, and preparing ourselves for the role we are meant to play in the final chapter of history. The restoration of Israel is not the end of the story—it is the signal that the King is coming. Let us be found faithful, not fearful. Let us stand with Israel—not merely in word, but in action, intercession, and bold proclamation of the gospel. God is moving—and we are invited to move with Him.

Christians should also take opportunities to learn more about Jewish history, culture, and the challenges Israel faces. Our support should be both spiritual and tangible, as we stand in solidarity with God's chosen people.

#### **Outline**

- Introduction: Israel's Place in God's Eternal Plan
- Briefly introduce the central themes and purpose of the book.
- Discuss the historical, spiritual, and prophetic significance of Israel.
- Introduce the reader to the structure of the upcoming chapters.

0

- Chapter 1: The Divine Purpose for Israel
- **Subtopic 1: Israel's Calling** God's specific call to Israel as His chosen people (Exodus 19:5-6).
- Subtopic 2: The Role of Israel in Redemption Israel as the conduit for God's plan of salvation through Jesus Christ (Romans 9:4-5).
- **Subtopic 3: God's Faithfulness to His People** How God's promises to Israel are eternal (2 Timothy 2:13).

0

- Chapter 2: The Historical Journey of Israel
- **Subtopic 1: From Abraham to the Exodus** God's covenant with Abraham and the journey to Egypt.
- Subtopic 2: The Exodus and Covenant at Sinai Israel's formation as a nation (Exodus 19-24).
- Subtopic 3: The Kings and Kingdom The rise of Israel under Saul, David, and Solomon.
- Chapter 3: The Role of Prophecy in Israel's Story
- Subtopic 1: Prophetic Promise of Israel's Restoration How the Old Testament prophets foretold Israel's return to the land (Isaiah 11:11-12).

- **Subtopic 2: Prophecies of the Messiah** Israel's ultimate hope in the coming Messiah (Isaiah 53).
- **Subtopic 3: The Fulfillment of Prophecy** Jesus' first coming and the continued fulfillment of God's promises.
- Chapter 4: The Cost of Disobedience (Deuteronomy 28:15-37)
- **Subtopic 1: The Blessings and Curses** An in-depth look at the promises and warnings given to Israel (Deuteronomy 28:1-14).
- **Subtopic 2: Disobedience and Consequences** The sorrowful history of Israel's disobedience and exile.
- **Subtopic 3: The Restoration of Israel** God's mercy and promises of return (Deuteronomy 30:1-10).
- Chapter 5: Understanding God's Judgment and Mercy
- **Subtopic 1: God's Discipline of Israel** Why God disciplined Israel, and how it demonstrates His justice and love.
- **Subtopic 2: The Hope of Repentance** God's promise of restoration when Israel returns to Him (Micah 7:18-20).
- Subtopic 3: Redemption Through Jesus How Jesus fulfilled God's judgment and mercy for both Israel and the world.
- Chapter 6: Jerusalem: God's Chosen City (Jeremiah 33:24-26)
- **Subtopic 1: Jerusalem's Spiritual Significance** Why Jerusalem is called God's "chosen city" (Psalm 48:1-2).
- Subtopic 2: The Promise of Restoration Prophetic promises of Jerusalem's future in God's Kingdom.
- Subtopic 3: Jerusalem in the New Testament Jesus' relationship with Jerusalem and its future role (Luke 13:34-35).
- Chapter 7: The Davidic Covenant and Jerusalem's Future

- **Subtopic 1: The Promise to David** The eternal promise God made to David regarding his throne (2 Samuel 7:12-16).
- **Subtopic 2: Jesus, the Fulfillment of the Davidic Covenant -** How Jesus fulfills the promises made to David (Matthew 1:1-16).
- Subtopic 3: The Restoration of Israel's Kingdom Prophecies regarding the restoration of Israel's kingdom in the last days (Ezekiel 37:21-28).
- Chapter 8: When the World is Against Israel (Jeremiah 29:10-14)
- **Subtopic 1: The Reality of Israel's Exile** Israel's exile as a direct consequence of disobedience.
- **Subtopic 2: God's Encouragement During Exile** The message of hope in Jeremiah 29:10-14 for Israel's return.
- **Subtopic 3: Modern-Day Opposition to Israel** Antisemitism and opposition against Israel throughout history.
- Chapter 9: The Spiritual Battle for Israel
- Subtopic 1: The Enemy's Strategy Against Israel Spiritual warfare and the enemy's plans to thwart God's purposes for Israel.
- Subtopic 2: The Role of Christians in Prayer The power of intercessory prayer for Israel's protection and restoration.
- Subtopic 3: Standing in the Gap How Christians can fight for Israel in the spiritual realm.
- Chapter 10: Israel's Future (Jeremiah 31:1-12)
- Subtopic 1: God's Promise of Restoration The promises of restoration and blessing for Israel after their exile.
- Subtopic 2: The New Covenant with Israel How God promises a new covenant that will bring spiritual renewal to Israel (Jeremiah 31:31-34).
- **Subtopic 3: The Future of Israel in Prophecy** The role of Israel in the eschatological timeline, including the return of the Messiah.

- Chapter 11: The Messianic Hope of Israel
- **Subtopic 1: The Messiah's Role in Israel's Restoration** How Jesus' first coming fulfilled the promises to Israel and how His second coming will complete them.
- Subtopic 2: The New Covenant and Israel Israel's spiritual renewal in the New Covenant.
- Subtopic 3: A Kingdom Restored Israel's role in the millennial kingdom.
- Chapter 12: Israel and the Nations
- **Subtopic 1: Israel's Mission to the World** How Israel was meant to be a light to the nations (Isaiah 49:6).
- **Subtopic 2: The Nations' Role in Israel's Restoration** The Bible's teaching on how the nations must interact with Israel in the last days.
- Subtopic 3: Blessing Israel as a Blessing to the Nations How supporting Israel benefits the Church and the world.
- Chapter 13: The Church's Role in Supporting Israel
- Subtopic 1: A Call to Love Israel Christians' biblical mandate to love and support Israel.
- **Subtopic 2: Practical Ways to Support Israel** How Christians can engage politically, spiritually, and socially in support of Israel.
- **Subtopic 3: Intercessory Prayer for Israel** Why prayer for Israel is crucial in the life of the Church.
- Chapter 14: Israel in the End-Times: Prophetic Fulfillment
- Subtopic 1: Israel in Revelation The key role Israel plays in the endtimes narrative of the Book of Revelation.
- **Subtopic 2: The Battle for Jerusalem** The significance of Jerusalem in the last days and its connection to the Battle of Armageddon (Zechariah 14:2-4).

- **Subtopic 3: The Coming Kingdom** How the return of Christ to Jerusalem signals the culmination of God's redemptive plan for Israel.
- Chapter 15: Conclusion: Why Israel Still Matters
- **Subtopic 1: God's Unchanging Promises to Israel** Reaffirming that Israel still holds a central place in God's plan.
- Subtopic 2: The Church's Role in God's Plan for Israel -Encouraging Christians to embrace their responsibility to Israel.